
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Gregg Hart 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

AUGUST 4, 2015 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


8/4/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 
 
1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through August 31, 2015. 
  

 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Subject:  Cancellation Of The September 1, 2015, And Reinstatement Of 
The September 8, 2015, City Council Meetings (120.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council cancel the September 1, 2015, City Council 
meeting and reinstate the previously cancelled September 8, 2015, City Council 
meeting. 
  

3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance To Designate Fishing Areas On Stearns 
Wharf (570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code by Adding Section 17.13.060 to Designate Fishing Areas on Stearns 
Wharf. 

 
 
 



8/4/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D)  

4. Subject:  Adoption Of Solar Energy System Permits Ordinance (630.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adding Chapter 22.91 to the Municipal 
Code and Amending Sections 28.04.050 and 28.93.030 Relating to Permitting 
Procedures and Construction Requirements for Solar Energy Systems. 
  

5. Subject:  Approval Of License And Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease 
Agreement With D&G Lin, LLC For An Automobile Dealership At The 
Airport (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Airport Director to execute a three-year License Agreement 

with D&G Lin, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company, for construction 
of an automobile dealership on 167,713 square feet of land at 6210 
Hollister Avenue, at the Santa Barbara Airport, at a monthly rental of 
$1,000, effective upon the date of execution by both parties; and 

B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 
of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the 
Airport Director to Execute a Twenty-Year Lease Agreement, With Two 
Five-Year Options, for 167,713 Square Feet of Land at 6210 Hollister 
Avenue, at the Santa Barbara Airport, With D&G Lin, LLC, a California 
Limited Liability Company, at a Monthly Rental of $20,000, Exclusive of 
Utilities, Effective Upon Issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy by the City. 

 

6. Subject:  Professional Services Agreement With Mitchell & Associates For 
Audit Services Of Percentage Rent Tenants At The Waterfront (570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with Mitchell & Associates for revenue 
examinations/audits of percentage rent tenants at the Waterfront in a total 
amount not to exceed $35,000 for Fiscal Year 2016. 
  

7. Subject:  State Of California Office Of Traffic Safety Selective Traffic 
Enforcement Grant (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A.  Accept a grant from the State of California, Office of Traffic Safety, in the 

amount of $280,000, and authorize the Chief of Police to execute the 
grant agreement; and 

B.  Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $280,000 in the 
Miscellaneous Grants Fund for Fiscal Year 2016 for the Selective Traffic 
Enforcement Program. 



8/4/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D)  

8. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Zone 2 (Upper State Street, 
Samarkand, and San Roque Neighborhoods) Pavement Preparation/ 
Overlay Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Granite Construction Company in their low bid 

amount of $2,415,969 for construction of the Zone 2 Pavement 
Preparation/Overlay Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to 
execute the contract and approve expenditures up to $193,278 to cover 
any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for extra 
work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual 
quantities measured for payment; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Flowers & 
Associates, Inc., in the amount of $179,905 for construction support 
services, and approve expenditures of up to $17,991 for extra services 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work;  

C. Authorize an increase in appropriations by $313,232 from reserves in the 
Measure A Fund for the Zone 2 Pavement Preparation/Overlay Project; 
and 

D. Authorize an increase in appropriations and estimated revenues by 
$54,400 in the Streets Capital Fund for the Zone 2 Pavement 
Preparation/Overlay Project funded from revenues received from Vista 
Oceano La Mesa Venture LLC. 

 

9. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Zone 2 (Upper State Street, 
Samarkand, and San Roque Neighborhoods) Slurry Seal Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with American Asphalt South, Inc., in their low bid 

amount of $489,389 for construction of the Zone 2 Slurry Seal Project, and 
authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve 
expenditures up to $48,939 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; and 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Flowers & 
Associates, Inc., in the amount of $106,675 for construction support 
services, and approve expenditures of up to $10,668 for extra services 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



8/4/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D)  

10. Subject:  Contract For Design Of Light Industrial Buildings On Airport 
Parcels 17 And 22 (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
City Professional Services contract with Kupiec Architects PC, in the amount of 
$280,000, for design services of the Airport Parcels 17 and 22 Development 
Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to 
$28,000 for extra services of Kupiec Architects PC that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work. 
  

11. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For Grant Funding Agreement For 
Recycled Water Plant Replacement Project (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing 
the Approval and Execution by the Public Works Director of a Proposition 84 
Integrated Regional Water Management Subgrant Agreement with the Santa 
Barbara County Water Agency, Pertaining to the Grant Funding Award of 
$1,045,222 for the City of Santa Barbara Recycled Water Enhancement (or 
Replacement) Project. 
  

12. Subject:  Sole Source Authorization To Purchase Acoustic Testing 
Equipment For The Wastewater Collection System (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve and authorize the General Services Manager to issue a Sole 

Source Purchase Order to 3T Equipment Company for $51,510.64, for the 
purchase of sanitary sewer acoustic testing equipment; and 

B. Find it to be in the City's best interest to approve equipment 
standardization for sanitary sewer acoustic testing equipment for the next 
five-year period, in accordance with Sections 4.52.070 (k) and (l) of the 
Municipal Code. 

 

13. Subject:  Response To 2014-2015 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report 
On Zoning Information Reports (150.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive the Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report on Zoning 

Information Reports; and 
B. Authorize the Mayor to send a letter forwarding the City's response to the 

Grand Jury Report. 

 



8/4/2015 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D)  

NOTICES 

14. The City Clerk has on Thursday, July 30, 2015, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

15. Subject:  Capital Improvement Projects:  Annual Report For Fiscal Year 
2015 (230.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive the City's Capital Improvement Projects 
Fourth Quarter and Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2015. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

16. Subject:  Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of An Amended 
Coastal Development Permit For A New Pool At 3425 Sea Ledge Lane 
(640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Chris Krach-Bastian, and 
uphold the decision of the Planning Commission to approve an Amendment to a 
Coastal Development Permit for a new pool, spa, pool equipment and safety 
fencing at 3425 Sea Ledge Lane, making the findings and adopting the 
conditions specified in Planning Commission Resolution No. 011-15. 
  

 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  1 
File Code No.  410.01 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Employee Recognition – Service Award Pins 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the City’s appreciation to 
employees who are eligible to receive service award pins for their years of service through 
August 31, 2015. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since 1980, the City Employees’ Recognition Program has recognized length of City 
Service.  Service award pins are presented to employees for every five years of service.  
Those employees achieving 25 years of service or more are eligible to receive their pins in 
front of the City Council. 
 
Attached is a list of those employees who will be awarded pins for their service through 
August 31, 2015. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: August 2015 Service Awards 
 
PREPARED BY: Myndi Hegeman, Administrative Specialist 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



 
ATTACHMENT 

 
 
 

AUGUST 2015 SERVICE AWARDS 
August 4, 2015 Council Meeting 

 
 
 

5 YEARS 

Simon Perez, Wastewater Collection System Operator II, Public Works Department 

Jerrold Holcomb, Custodian, Airport Department 

 

10 YEARS 

Catherine Chan, Police Technician, Police Department 

German Padilla, Parking Enforcement Officer, Police Department 

Steven Foley, Supervising Transportation Planner, Public Works Department 

Garrett Reynolds, Welder / Fabricator, Public Works Department 

Timothy Burgess, Water Resources Specialist, Parks and Recreation Department 

Jill Murray, Water Quality Research Coordinator, Parks and Recreation Department 

 

15 YEARS  

Gregory Corral, Purchasing Supervisor, Finance Department 

Garrett Osgood, Painter, Public Works Department 

 

25 YEARS  

Richard Brade, Grounds Maintenance Crew Leader, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
30 YEARS  

Janet C. Neuhauser, Public Safety Dispatch Supervisor, Police Department 

Michael Jones, Custodian, Public Works 

James Jenkins, Water Distribution Supervisor, Public Works Department 

 



Agenda Item No.  2 
File Code No.  120.09 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Cancellation Of The September 1, 2015, And Reinstatement Of The 

September 8, 2015, City Council Meetings 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council cancel the September 1, 2015, City Council meeting and reinstate the 
previously cancelled September 8, 2015, City Council meeting. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Upon reviewing future business items, we have determined that the Council Meeting 
currently scheduled for Tuesday, September 1, 2015, is unnecessary. As a result, staff 
recommends that the meeting be cancelled.   
 
Concurrently, staff recommends that the meeting of September 8, 2015, which was 
approved for cancellation by Council on November 18, 2014, be reinstated.   
 
 
PREPARED BY: Jennifer M. Jennings, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO._______ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE SANTA BARBARA 
MUNICIPAL CODE BY ADDING SECTION 17.13.060 TO 
DESIGNATE FISHING AREAS ON STEARNS WHARF 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 17.13 of Title 17 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 

amended by adding Section 17.13.060 which reads as follows:   

17.13.060.     Stearns Wharf Designated Fishing Areas. 
 
 It shall be unlawful to fish from Stearns Wharf except in the areas depicted as 

“Designated Fishing Areas” on the map attached as Exhibit “A” to Chapter 17.13.  The 

Waterfront Director, or his or her designee, may make temporary changes to the 

boundaries of the “Designated Fishing Areas” as shown on Exhibit “A” to accommodate 

special events.  Exhibit “A” attached to Chapter 17.13 shall not be revised to reflect 

such temporary changes but notice of such temporary changes will be posted at visible 

locations on Stearns Wharf. 

AUG 4 2015 #3 
570.03 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ADDING CHAPTER 22.91 TO THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE AND AMENDING SECTIONS 28.04.050 
AND 28.93.030 RELATING TO PERMITTING 
PROCEDURES AND CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 
FOR SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS. 

WHEREAS, Subdivision (a) of Section 65850.5 of the California Government 
Code provides that it is the policy of the State to promote and encourage the installation 
and use of solar energy systems by limiting obstacles to their use and by minimizing the 
permitting costs of such systems, including design review for aesthetic purposes; and  

 
WHEREAS, Subdivision (b) of Section 65850.5 of the California Government 

Code provides that the requirements of local law shall be limited to those standards and 
regulations necessary to ensure that a solar energy system will not have a specific, 
adverse impact on the public health or safety; and 

WHEREAS, Subdivision (g)(1) of Section 65850.5 of the California Government 
Code provides that, on or before September 30, 2015, every city, county, or city and 
county shall adopt an ordinance, consistent with the goals and intent of subdivision (a) 
of Section 65850.5, that creates an expedited, streamlined permitting process for small 
residential rooftop solar energy systems; and 

WHEREAS, The City’s General Plan calls for a reduction in green-house gas 
emissions and promotes the use of local renewable energy sources, and solar 
photovoltaic electrical energy systems are a common means of reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions by reducing the demand for fossil fuel generated electricity; and 

WHEREAS, The cost of pre-installing future solar photovoltaic electrical conduit 
in new a home during construction is a small fraction of the cost to retrofit the same 
conduit into an existing home; and 

WHEREAS, The California Health and Safety Code, Section 17958.7(a) allows 
the California Building Standards to be amended by local authorities based on local 
climatic, geologic, or topographical conditions, and, because of the local topography 
and geology, the City of Santa Barbara’s access to electrical utility infrastructure is 
limited to a single, remote system of electrical transmission infrastructure, and because 
the City of Santa Barbara experiences periods of high heat that maximize the demand 
for electrical current over this transmission system. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS 

 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 22.91 is added to Title 22 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code to 
read as follows: 

AUG 4 2015 #4 
630.06 



2 
 

Chapter 22.91 

Solar Energy System Review Process. 
 

22.91.010  Definitions.   

 The following words and phrases as used in this Chapter 22.91 are defined as 
follows: 

A. “Electronic submittal” means the utilization of one or more of the following:  

1. e-mail, or  

2. the internet, or  

3. facsimile. 

B. “Feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact” 
includes, but is not limited to, any cost-effective method, condition, or mitigation 
imposed by the City on another similarly situated application in a prior successful 
application for a permit.  The City shall use its best efforts to ensure that the selected 
method, condition, or mitigation meets the conditions of subparagraphs (A) and (B) of 
paragraph (1) of subdivision (b) of Section 714 of the Civil Code, as such section or 
subdivision may be amended, renumbered, or redesignated from time to time.  

C. “Small residential rooftop solar energy system” is a solar energy system that 
satisfies all of the following elements: 

1. A solar energy system that is no larger than 10 kilowatts alternating 
current nameplate rating or 30 kilowatts thermal;  

2. A solar energy system that conforms to all applicable state fire, 
structural, electrical, and other building codes as adopted or amended by the City and 
paragraph (iii) of subdivision (c) of Section 714 of the Civil Code, as such section or 
subdivision may be amended, renumbered, or redesignated from time to time;  

3. A solar energy system that is installed on a single residential unit or 
two-residential unit (as defined in Chapter 28.04 of this Code); and  

4. A solar panel or module array that does not exceed the maximum legal 
building height as defined by the authority having jurisdiction.  

D. “Solar energy system” has the same meaning set forth in paragraphs (1) and (2) 
of subdivision (a) of Section 801.5 of the Civil Code, as such section or subdivision may 
be amended, renumbered, or redesignated from time to time. 

 
E. “Specific, adverse impact” means a significant, quantifiable, direct, and 

unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified, and written public health and safety 
standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date the application was 
deemed complete.  



3 
 

 
22.91.020 Administrative Approval Process.   
 
 The City shall administratively approve applications to install solar energy 
systems pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter 22.91.  If an application for a solar 
energy system satisfies all of the requirements of the Small Residential Rooftop Solar 
Energy System checklist, the application shall receive expedited review pursuant to 
Section 22.91.030.  Otherwise, all applications to install solar energy systems shall be 
processed pursuant to this Section 22.91.020.   
 

A. Application.  Prior to submitting a solar energy system permit application and 
checklist to the City, the applicant shall:  
 

1. Verify to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction through the use of 
standard engineering evaluation techniques that the support structure for the solar 
energy system is stable and adequate to transfer all wind, seismic, and dead and live 
loads associated with the system to the building foundation; and  
 

2. Verify that the existing electrical system’s current or proposed 
configuration will accommodate all new photovoltaic electrical loads in accordance with 
the edition of the California Electrical Code in effect at the time the solar energy system 
permit application is submitted; and 

 
 3. Verify that the proposal is exempt from, or otherwise complies with, the 
coastal development permit requirements pursuant to Public Resources Code 30610,  
Sections 13250 to 13253 of Title 14 of the California Administrative Code, and Chapter 
28.44 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 
 

B. Extent of Review.  The review of all applications to install a solar energy system 
shall be limited to the Building Official’s review of whether the proposed solar energy 
system meets all health and safety requirements of local, state, and federal law and the 
City Planner’s review of applicable building height, open yard requirements, and zoning 
setbacks pursuant to Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code.  If the Building 
Official makes a finding, based on substantial evidence, that the solar energy system 
could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety, the City shall 
require the applicant to obtain a Performance Standard Permit. 
 

C. Standards for Solar Energy Systems.  All solar energy systems proposed for 
installation within the City of Santa Barbara shall meet the following standards, as 
applicable: 
 
 1. All solar energy systems shall meet applicable health and safety 
standards and requirements imposed by state and local permitting authorities, including 
building height, zoning setback, minimum open yard, and permitted construction 
standards. 
 



4 
 

 2. Solar energy systems for heating water in single family residences and 
solar collectors used for heating water in commercial or swimming pool applications 
shall be certified by an accredited listing agency as defined in the California Plumbing 
and Mechanical Codes. 
 
 3. A solar energy systems for producing electricity shall meet all applicable 
safety and performance standards established by the California Electrical Code, the 
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, and accredited testing laboratories 
such as Underwriters Laboratories and, where applicable, rules of the Public Utilities 
Commission regarding safety and reliability. 
 
 4. Solar energy systems may be installed on a property with outstanding 
violations of the City’s Municipal Code so long as both of the following requirements are 
satisfied: 
  a. The proposed solar energy system installation will not rely upon 
prior construction that was identified as a violation in an unresolved City notice or 
document, and 
  b. In the course of conducting the building inspection for a solar 
energy system, a health or life-safety hazard is not observed.  Examples of such 
hazards include, but are not limited to conditions that could lead to structural failure, 
electrical shock, and sanitary sewer failures. 
 

D. Performance Standard Permit.  In the case where the Building Official makes a 
finding, based on substantial evidence, that the solar energy system could have a 
specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety, the solar energy system 
shall not be installed until a Performance Standard Permit has been issued for the solar 
energy system pursuant to Chapter 28.93 of this Code.  The Performance Standard 
Permit shall require the installation or incorporation of methods or conditions necessary 
to minimize or avoid the specific, adverse impact. 

 
E. Appeal.  The Building Official’s decision that a proposed solar energy system 

could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety is appealable in 
accordance with the following procedures: 

 
 1. Who May Appeal.  The decision of the Building Official may be appealed 

to the Planning Commission by the applicant. No other persons can appeal. 
 
 2. Timing for Appeal.  The applicant must file a written appeal with the 

Community Development Director no more than 10 calendar days following the Building 
Official’s decision. The appeal shall include the grounds for appeal.  

 
 3. Grounds for Appeal. The decision of the Building Official may be appealed 
on the grounds that the Building Official’s decision that a proposed solar energy system 
could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety is not supported 
by substantial evidence.  
 



5 
 

 4. Scheduling an Appeal Hearing. The Community Development Department 
shall assign a date for an appeal hearing before the Planning Commission no earlier 
than 10 calendar days after the date on which the appeal is filed with the Community 
Development Director. The appeal hearing shall generally be held within 60 calendar 
days following the filing of the application for the hearing.  
 
 5. Power to Act on the Decision at Appeal Hearing. The Planning 
Commission may affirm, reverse, or modify the Building Official’s decision that a 
proposed solar energy system could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public 
health and safety in accordance with the following:  
  a. A decision to affirm the decision of the Building Official shall require 
a finding based on substantial evidence in the record that the proposed solar energy 
system could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health and safety.  
  b. If the Planning Commission determines that there is not substantial 
evidence that the solar energy system could have a specific adverse impact upon the 
public health and safety, then the decision of the Building Official shall be reversed and 
the project shall be approved.  
  c. If the Planning Commission determines that conditions of approval 
would mitigate the specific adverse impact upon the public health and safety, then the 
decision of the Building Official shall be reversed and the project shall be conditionally 
approved.  Any conditions imposed shall mitigate at the lowest cost possible, which 
generally means the permit condition shall not cause the project to exceed 10 percent of 
the cost of the small rooftop solar energy system or decrease the efficiency of the small 
rooftop solar energy system by an amount exceeding 10 percent. 
 
 6. The decision of the City Planning Commission is final. 
 
 
22.91.030 Expedited, Streamlined Permitting Process for Small Residential 
Rooftop Solar Energy Systems.   
 
 In compliance with Government Code Section 65850.5, the City has developed 
an expedited and streamlined permitting process for qualifying Small Residential 
Rooftop Solar Energy Systems.  The submittal requirements and review procedures for 
applications of Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems are as follows: 
 

A. Application Checklist.  In order to be eligible for expedited review, prior to 
submitting a solar energy system permit application and checklist to the City, the 
applicant shall:  
 

1. Verify to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction through the use of 
standard engineering evaluation techniques that the support structure for the solar 
energy system is stable and adequate to transfer all wind, seismic, and dead and live 
loads associated with the system to the building foundation; and  
 



6 
 

2. Verify that the existing electrical system’s current or proposed 
configuration will accommodate all new photovoltaic electrical loads in accordance with 
the edition of the California Electrical Code in effect at the time the solar energy system 
permit application is submitted; and 

 
 3. Verify that the proposal is exempt from, or otherwise complies with, the 
coastal development permit requirements pursuant to Public Resources Code 30610, 
Sections 13250 to 13253 of Title 14 of the California Administrative Code, and Chapter 
28.44 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 
 

B. Application Submission.  City accepts the submission of applications for Small 
Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems and the associated checklist and 
documentation in person at the Building Permit counter or by electronic submittal.  The 
City shall accept signatures electronically for electronic submittals. 

 
C. Standards for Solar Energy Systems.  All solar energy systems proposed for 

installation within the City of Santa Barbara shall meet the following standards, as 
applicable: 
 
 1. All solar energy systems shall meet applicable health and safety 
standards and requirements imposed by state and local permitting authorities, including 
building height, zoning setback, minimum open yard, and permitted construction 
standards. 
 
 2. Solar energy systems for heating water in single family residences and 
solar collectors used for heating water in commercial or swimming pool applications 
shall be certified by an accredited listing agency as defined in the California Plumbing 
and Mechanical Codes. 
 
 3. A solar energy systems for producing electricity shall meet all applicable 
safety and performance standards established by the California Electrical Code, the 
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, and accredited testing laboratories 
such as Underwriters Laboratories and, where applicable, rules of the Public Utilities 
Commission regarding safety and reliability. 
 
 4. Solar energy systems may be installed on a property with outstanding 
violations of the City’s Municipal Code so long as both of the following requirements are 
satisfied: 
  a. The proposed solar energy system installation will not rely upon 
prior construction that was identified as a violation in an unresolved City notice or 
document, and 
  b. In the course of conducting the building inspection for a solar 
energy system, a health or life-safety hazard is not observed.  Examples of such 
hazards include, but are not limited to conditions that could lead to structural failure, 
electrical shock, and sanitary sewer failures. 

  



7 
 

 
D. Application Review.  The Building and Safety Division shall confirm whether the 

application and supporting documents are complete and meet the requirements of the 
City’s Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System checklist.  The Building and 
Safety Division shall review applications for Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy 
Systems within 24 working hours (3 working days) of submission.  Mounting the solar 
panels on the plane of the roof with the California Solar Permitting Guide “Flush Mount” 
standards, will eliminate the need for confirmation of maximum building height.   
 

E. Complete Application.  An application that satisfies the information requirements 
specified in the City’s Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System checklist shall be 
deemed complete. 
 

F. Incomplete Application.  If the Building and Safety Division determines that an 
application for a Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System is incomplete, the 
Building and Safety Division shall issue a written correction notice detailing all 
deficiencies in the application and any additional information required to be eligible for 
expedited permit issuance.  Alternatively, if the Building and Safety Division determines 
that the proposed solar energy system, as proposed, will not qualify as a Small 
Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System, the Building and Safety Division may 
recommend that the applicant re-submit his or her application pursuant to Section 
22.91.020. 
 

G. Permit Approval.  Upon confirmation by the Building and Safety Division that the 
application and supporting documents are complete and meet the requirements of the 
Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System checklist, the Building Official shall 
approve the application and issue all required permits or authorizations electronically. 
 

H. Inspections.  The installation of a Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy 
System shall only require one building inspection which, if a fire inspection is required, 
shall be consolidated with the fire inspection.  If the installation of the Small Residential 
Rooftop Solar Energy System fails the inspection, a subsequent inspection or 
inspections shall be required, at the applicant’s expense, until the installation passes 
inspection or is cancelled and the solar energy system is removed to the satisfaction of 
the Building Official. 
 



8 
 

 
SECTION 2.  Section 22.04.050 of Chapter 22.04 of Title 22 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 

22.04.050.  Amendments to the California Electrical Code. 
 

The 2013 California Electrical Code, as adopted by reference pursuant to this 
Chapter, is amended as set forth in this Section 22.04.050:   

A. Article 89.108.8 California Electrical Code is deleted and readopted to read as 
follows: 

89.108.8 Appeals Board. Appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations made by 
the Authority Having Jurisdiction shall be addressed in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 113 and Appendix B of the California Building Code as amended by the City 
of Santa Barbara in Section 22.04.020. 

B. A new Article 690.4 (I) is added to the California Electrical Code to read as 
follows: 
 
 690.4 (I) Single Family Residences. New single family residences shall comply 
with the requirements of this Article. 
 

(1) Conduit for Future Solar Photovoltaic System. Newly constructed single-
family dwelling units shall include minimum 1-inch diameter, metallic electrical conduit 
installed per this Section to accommodate future installation of roof-mounted solar 
photovoltaic systems.  The electrical junction box and the segment of conduit run in the 
attic, or where there is no attic, to the roof deck, shall be permanently and visibly 
marked as "For Future Solar Photovoltaic”. 

 
(2) Conduit and Junction Box Locations. One conduit run shall originate at a 

readily accessible attic or roof deck location with proximity to California Energy Code’s 
“Solar Zone Area” and terminate at a minimum 4-inch-square approved electrical 
junction box located within 72 inches horizontally and 12 inches vertically of a main 
electrical panel. A second conduit run shall originate at the electrical junction box and 
terminate at the main electrical panel. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  Section 28.93.030 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

 

28.93.030 Uses Permitted Upon Issuance of a Performance Standard Permit. 
 
 The following use(s) may be permitted subject to the approval of a Performance 
Standard Permit: 



9 
 

 A. State-licensed Large Family Day Care Homes in the A, E, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 and 
PUD zones and in the HRC-2 zone where residential uses are permitted provided that 
the following performance standards are met: 
  1. There are no other State-licensed Large Family Day Care Homes within a 
300 foot radius of the proposed Large Family Day Care Home measured from the 
nearest property lines of the affected Large Family Day Care Homes.  A waiver from the 
300-foot spacing requirement may be granted if it can be found that certain physical 
conditions exist and if the waiver would not result in significant effects on the public 
peace, health, safety and comfort of the affected neighborhood.  Examples of physical 
conditions that may warrant granting of a waiver include intervening topography that 
creates a barrier or separation between the facilities such as hillsides or ravines, the 
presence of major nonresidential uses or structures between facilities or the presence of 
a major roadway between the facilities. 
  2. The City finds that adequate off-street area or on-street area in front of the 
residence is available for passenger loading and unloading.  The passenger loading and 
unloading area shall be of adequate size and configuration and shall allow unrestricted 
access to neighboring properties. 
  3. Outdoor play shall be limited to the hours between 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. 
  4. One additional parking space for employee parking shall be provided unless a 
finding is made that adequate on-street or off-street parking is available to support the 
proposed use. 
 B. Community care facilities, residential care facilities for the elderly, and hospices 
serving 7 to 12 individuals in the A, E, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, and PUD zones and in the 
HRC-2 zone where residential uses are permitted, provided that the following 
performance standards are met: 
  1. Adequate off-street parking is provided pursuant to Section 28.90.100 or as 
modified pursuant to Section 28.92.110. 
  2. The facility conforms to the extent feasible to the type, character and 
appearance of other residential units in the neighborhood in which it is located.  This 
provision shall in no way restrict the installation of any special feature(s) necessary to 
serve disabled residents (e.g., ramps, lifts, handrails). 
  3. The intensity of use in terms of number of people, hours of major activities 
and other operational aspects of the proposed facility is compatible with any 
neighboring residential use. 
 C. Public works treatment and distribution facilities that are greater than 500 square 
feet and no more than 1,000 square feet in the R-3, R-4, and P-R zones subject to the 
requirements of Section 28.37.010.B., and less restrictive zones, provided that the 
following performance standards are met: 
  1. The setbacks of the proposed facilities from property and street lines are of 
sufficient magnitude in view of the character of the land and of the proposed 
development that significant detrimental impact on surrounding residential properties is 
avoided. 
  2. The operation of the proposed facility is such that the character of the area is 
not significantly altered or disturbed. 
  3. The design and operation of non-emergency outdoor security lighting and 
equipment will not be a nuisance to the use of property in the area. 



10 
 

  4. Construction (including preparation for construction work) is prohibited 
Monday through Friday before 8:00 a.m. and after 5:00 p.m., and all day on Saturdays, 
Sundays, and holidays observed by the City of Santa Barbara. 
  5. If construction work is necessary before 8:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, it must be approved by the Chief Building Official.  If approved by the 
Chief Building Official, the applicant shall provide written notice to all property owners 
and residents within 300 feet of the project and the City Planning and Building Divisions 
at least 48 hours prior to commencement of any noise-generating construction activity. 
  6. The project will incorporate standard dust control measures to minimize air 
quality nuisances to surrounding properties. 
 D. Rehabilitation of existing water storage reservoirs or sludge basins in any zone, 
that are owned and operated by the City, provided that the following performance 
standards are met: 
  1. That the design and operation of non-emergency outdoor lighting and 
equipment will not be a nuisance to the use of property in the area. 
  2. Construction (including preparation for construction work) is prohibited 
Monday through Friday before 8:00 a.m. and after 5:00 p.m., and all day on Saturdays, 
Sundays and holidays observed by the City of Santa Barbara. 
  3. If construction work is necessary before 8:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, it must be approved by the Chief Building Official.  If approved by the 
Chief Building Official, the applicant shall provide written notice to all property owners 
and residents within 300 feet of the project and the City Planning and Building Divisions 
at least 48 hours prior to commencement of any noise-generating construction activity. 
  4. The project will incorporate standard dust control measures to minimize air 
quality nuisances to surrounding properties. 
 E. Additional dwelling units.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this title, where 
a lot in an A-1, A-2, E-1, E-2, E-3, or R-1 Zone has an area of more than the required lot 
area for that zone and adequate provisions for ingress and egress, a Performance 
Standard Permit may be granted by the Staff Hearing Officer for the construction of 
additional one-family dwellings and allowable accessory buildings in these zones.   
However, the minimum site area per dwelling unit in these zones shall be the minimum 
lot area required for that zone, and the location of such additional dwellings shall comply 
with the provisions of all other applicable ordinances. 

F. Solar Energy Systems.  In the case where the Building Official makes a finding, 
based on substantial evidence, that a solar energy system could have a specific, 
adverse impact upon the public health and safety (as defined in Chapter 22.91 of this 
Code), the solar energy system shall not be issued a building permit until a 
Performance Standard Permit has been issued for the solar energy system.   

 1. Conditions of Approval .  The Performance Standard Permit shall require 
the installation or incorporation of measures or conditions necessary to minimize or 
avoid the specific, adverse impact. 

 2. Grounds for Denial.  The City shall not deny an application for a 
Performance Standard Permit to install a solar energy system unless it makes written 
findings based upon substantial evidence in the record that the proposed installation 
would have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health or safety, and there is no 
feasible method to satisfactorily minimize or avoid the specific, adverse impact.  If the 



11 
 

applicant proposes any potentially feasible alternatives for preventing the specific 
adverse impact, the findings accompanying the denial of the Performance Standard 
Permit shall include the basis for the rejection for potential feasible alternatives of 
preventing the specific, adverse impact. 

 3. Appeal.  The decision of the Staff Hearing Officer to deny an application 
for a Performance Standard Permit is appealable according to the following procedures: 

  a. Who May Appeal.  The decision of the Staff Hearing Officer may be 
appealed to the Planning Commission by the applicant. No other persons can appeal. 

  b. Timing for Appeal.  The applicant may appeal a decision of the 
Staff Hearing Officer by filing an appeal with the Community Development Director no 
more than 10 calendar days following the decision. The application shall include the 
grounds for appeal.  
  c. Grounds for Appeal. The decision of the Staff Hearing Officer may 
be appealed on the grounds that the stated findings to deny the permit are not 
supported by substantial evidence.  
  d. Scheduling an Appeal Hearing. The Community Development 
Department shall assign a date for an appeal hearing before the Planning Commission 
no earlier than 10 calendar days after the date on which the appeal is filed with the 
Community Development Director. The appeal hearing shall generally be held within 60 
calendar days following the filing of the application for the hearing.  
  e. Power to Act on the Decision at Appeal Hearing. The Planning 
Commission may affirm, reverse, or modify the Staff Hearing Officer’s decision to deny 
a solar energy system in accordance with the following:  
   i. A decision to affirm the decision of the Staff Hearing Officer 
shall require a finding based on substantial evidence in the record that the proposed 
solar energy system would have a specific, adverse impact upon the public health and 
safety.  
   ii. If the Planning Commission determines that there is not 
substantial evidence that the solar energy system would have a specific adverse impact 
upon the public health and safety, then the decision of the Staff Hearing Officer shall be 
reversed and the project shall be approved.  
   iii. If the Planning Commission determines that conditions of 
approval would mitigate the specific adverse impact upon the public health and safety, 
then the decision of the Staff Hearing Officer shall be reversed and the project shall be 
conditionally approved.  Any conditions imposed shall mitigate at the lowest cost 
possible, which generally means the permit condition shall not cause the project to 
exceed 10 percent of the cost of the small rooftop solar energy system or decrease the 
efficiency of the small rooftop solar energy system by an amount exceeding 10 percent. 
  f. The decision of the City Planning Commission is final. 
 
 
SECTION 4.  Severability. If any section, subsection, phrase, or clause of this ordinance 
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions of this ordinance.  

 



12 
 

The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each 
section, subsection, phrase or clause thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more sections, subsections, phrases, or clauses be declared unconstitutional.  

 
SECTION 5.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after 
passage thereof.  



Agenda Item No.  5 
 

File Code No.  330.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 28, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business & Property Division, Airport Department  
 
SUBJECT: Approval Of License And Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease 

Agreement With D&G Lin, LLC For An Automobile Dealership At The 
Airport 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Authorize the Airport Director to execute a three-year License Agreement with D&G 

Lin, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company, for construction of an automobile 
dealership on 167,713 square feet of land at 6210 Hollister Avenue, at the Santa 
Barbara Airport, at a monthly rental of $1,000, effective upon the date of execution 
by both parties; and 

B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the Airport 
Director to Execute a Twenty-Year Lease Agreement, With Two Five-Year 
Options, for 167,713 Square Feet of Land at 6210 Hollister Avenue, at the Santa 
Barbara Airport, With D&G Lin, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company, at a 
Monthly Rental of $20,000, Exclusive of Utilities, Effective Upon Issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy by the City.  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Airport has received an unsolicited proposal for construction of a new automobile 
dealership on behalf of D&G Lin, LLC, part of the New Century Automotive Group.  Mr. 
Lin proposes to construct a Chrysler, Dodge, Jeep and Ram dealership on 167,713 
square feet of land, at 6210 Hollister Avenue, for a monthly rental of $20,000 which 
adjusts to market rates at each five year increment.  The property has been recently 
appraised and the rent is at market, per FAA regulations.  The zoning is appropriate for 
the use, and the environmental review has been completed. References provided by 
Mr. Lin and the New Century Automotive Group have been excellent. The License is to 
allow construction of the dealership facilities. On July 15, 2015, Airport Commission 
approved a five-year lease with D&G Lin, effective concurrently with the dealership 
lease, for 2.9 acres of land at 200 Frederick Lopez Road, for additional automobile 
storage, at $7,000 per month, bringing the total revenue from the dealership, once 
operating, to $27,000 per month. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of License And Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With D&G Lin, 
LLC For An Automobile Dealership At The Airport  
July 28, 2015 
Page 2 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
Proposal 
 
The Airport received an unsolicited proposal from Steve Leider, Lee & Associates – 
Central Coast, a real estate broker, on behalf of Dennis Lin, New Century Automotive 
Group, who was looking for a site for an automobile dealership in the Santa Barbara 
area. Because the Airport has had an auto dealership in the Commercial/Industrial area, 
located at the corner of La Patera and Hollister Avenue, this location was requested 
along with the adjacent vacant parcels fronting Hollister to David Love Place.  
 
Mr. Lin, of D&G Lin, LLC has been in the automotive sales and repair business for 23 
years, and is a partner or sole proprietor of 14 dealerships throughout southern 
California, including Alfa Romeo and Fiat, BMW, Infiniti, and Chrysler, Dodge, Jeep, 
Ram, and Volkswagon.  New Century also has a recreational vehicle group that 
includes, Airstream, BMW Motorrad, Slingshot, Indian and Victory motorcycles. In 
addition, New Century operates Universal Financial Company, an auto finance 
company in San Gabriel.  Mr. Lin has served on the boards of the San Gabriel Valley 
Medical Center, the Chinese Education Association, and the Chinese Club of San 
Marino and currently serves on the board of Pacific Alliance Bank.  He also served on 
the San Marino General Plan Steering Committee and is a member of the San Marino 
Chamber of Commerce. 
 
Mr. Lin proposes to bring back the Chrysler, Dodge, Ram and Jeep brands, and may 
add additional brands at a later date. 
 
Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan (SP-6) Policy Consistency 
 
City Council approved the Airport Specific Plan in 1997.  It is the guiding document for 
development of the Airport’s commercial/industrial properties north of Hollister Avenue.   
 
The proposed lease site is located in Sub-Area #2 of the Airport Industrial Area Specific 
Plan (SP-6) in an area designated as “Light Industrial and/or Commercial” and “Jeep 
Dealership.”  The proposed lease is consistent with policies of the Specific Plan 
pertaining to the Airport Department’s economic self-sufficiency and the pattern of 
development along Hollister Avenue.  The lease site is in the Airport Industrial Zone (A-
I-2) in which new car sales is an expressly permissible use.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of License And Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With D&G Lin, 
LLC For An Automobile Dealership At The Airport  
July 28, 2015 
Page 3 

 

Figure 1:  Proposed Lease Parcels 
 

 
 
 
Runway Protection Zone Restriction 
 
A portion of the property located at 6210 Hollister Avenue, which was occupied by the 
former auto dealership, is in the Runway Protection Zone (RPZ) for Runway 15L/33R.  
The RPZ is a critical safety area where aircraft are on short final approach and no new 
above-ground development is permissible.  Federal guidance now prohibits all 
development in the RPZ.  The former auto dealership was demolished in 2012 pursuant 
to the Specific Plan and Federal RPZ guidance. The new proposed leased area (as 
shown above) and the building envelope for the proposed new auto dealership 
development and all vehicle parking will be located outside of the RPZ to avoid conflict 
with aviation safety regulations. 
 
Land Value 
 
The FAA requires that all Airport rentals of land or facilities be at market rates. The 
Airport had the area appraised and, based on that appraisal, negotiated two 
agreements:  a license agreement to secure the land while Mr. Lin completes the 
design, permitting entitlement, and construction phase of the development; and a lease 
agreement to be effective upon issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of License And Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With D&G Lin, 
LLC For An Automobile Dealership At The Airport  
July 28, 2015 
Page 4 

 

Proposed License Terms  
 
The premises includes three parcels totaling approximately 167,713 square feet of 
vacant land. Title to the premises shall remain vested in the City.  
 
The term of the License is three years, and may be extended an additional year at the 
sole discretion of the City.  Rental during the license period shall be $1,000 per month. 
 
Improvements to be constructed include buildings, landscape, hardscape, driveways, 
sidewalks, utilities and other permanent structures at the sole costs and expense of 
D&G Lin, LLC. At the successful completion of construction, as evidenced by the 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy by the City, the Lease commences. 
 
Proposed Lease Terms 
 
The initial term of the proposed lease is twenty (20) years.  There are two five-year 
options conditioned upon the tenant being in good standing under the terms of the 
lease.   
 
Base rental for the dealership lease is $20,000 per month, exclusive of utilities. The 
dealership Lease agreement includes a market rate rental adjustment every five years 
on the anniversary date of the lease.  In no case shall the new rent be less than that of 
the previous month. 
 
Vehicle Storage Lease Terms 
 
A separate five-year Lease Agreement for additional storage of inventory was approved 
by Airport Commission on July 15, 2015.  The lease commences upon issuance of the 
Certificate of Occupancy for the dealership and has a five year term.  Total area leased 
is 2.9 acres or 126,324 square feet of land.  The base rental is $7,000 per month with 
annual CPI adjustments of no less than 3%, nor greater than 8%, per year. 
 
Total Rent 
 
The total rent for the dealership and inventory storage lot for the first five years of 
operation will be $27,000 a month or $324,000 per year in revenue to the Airport, 
exclusive of utilities. 
 
Broker Compensation 
 
In recognition of the services provided by Lee & Associates Commercial Real Estate 
Services, Inc., City and D&G Lin, LLC will each pay 50% of the brokerage commission.  
The commission will be based on the $20,000 base rent for the dealership as follows: 
 4% of the base rent for years 1-5  

2% of the base rent for years 6-10 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of License And Introduction Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With D&G Lin, 
LLC For An Automobile Dealership At The Airport  
July 28, 2015 
Page 5 

 

 1% of the base rent for years 11-20 
  
Environmental Review 
 
The decision of the City Council to enter into a lease agreement is a discretionary 
project as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  Development 
similar to the proposed project was considered in the Airport Industrial Area Specific 
Plan (SP-6) Environmental Impact Report (EIR).  Additionally build-out of the Airport 
Industrial Specific Plan was considered in the General Plan EIR.  Therefore the 
proposed lease is exempt from further environmental review under CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15183 “Projects Consistent with a Community Plan or Zoning.”  If new project-
specific impacts are identified in the development review process, additional 
environmental review may be necessary. 
 
Airport Commission 
 
The Airport Commission recommended approval of the license and lease at their 
regularly scheduled meeting on July 15, 2015. 
. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Rebecca Fribley, Sr. Property Management Specialist 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Hazel Johns, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
AIRPORT DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A TWENTY-YEAR 
LEASE AGREEMENT, WITH TWO FIVE-YEAR OPTIONS, 
FOR 167,713 SQUARE FEET OF LAND AT 6210 
HOLLISTER AVENUE, AT THE SANTA BARBARA 
AIRPORT, WITH D&G LIN, LLC, A CALIFORNIA LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY, AT A MONTHLY RENTAL OF 
$20,000, EXCLUSIVE OF UTILITIES, EFFECTIVE UPON 
ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY BY THE 
CITY. 

 
 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:  
 
SECTION 1.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, that certain twenty-year Lease Agreement, with two five-year options, 
between the City of Santa Barbara and D&G Lin, LLC, for operation of an automobile 
dealership at 6210 Hollister Avenue; including 167,713 square feet of land, at the Santa 
Barbara Airport, for a monthly rental of $20,000, exclusive of utilities, is hereby 
approved. 
 

 

 

 

 



Agenda Item No.  6 
File Code No.  570.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Business Services Division, Waterfront Department 
 
SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement With Mitchell & Associates For 

Audit Services Of Percentage Rent Tenants At The Waterfront 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute a Professional Services 
Agreement with Mitchell & Associates for revenue examinations/audits of percentage rent 
tenants at the Waterfront in a total amount not-to-exceed $35,000 for Fiscal Year 2016. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since 1992, the Waterfront Department has conducted revenue examinations (“audits”) 
of its percentage rent paying tenants. These revenue examinations are to ensure that 
tenants are calculating their percentage rent appropriately and are in compliance with 
lease requirements. The revenue examination process and percentage rent protocols 
require a specialized form of accounting engagement referred to as forensic 
accounting. 
 
The Waterfront Department has conducted Request for Proposal processes in the past 
for the revenue examination services. On each occasion Mitchell & Associates (formerly 
Pyne, Waltrip, Decker and McCoy) was either the only party to respond or was selected 
over other parties as the most qualified firm to provide the revenue engagement 
services for the Department. Mitchell & Associates provides a professional product that 
is fairly priced. They have also established solid professional relationships with all of the 
Waterfront tenants and have provided the Waterfront Department with outstanding 
service in the past. Mitchell & Associates is familiar with the Waterfront Department’s 
business activities and processes as well as the intricacies of Department leases 
regarding sales, rents, percentage rents and reporting requirements. 
 
Funds for these services have been budgeted in the Waterfront Department / Property 
Management program. 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian J. Bosse, Waterfront Business Manager 
SUBMITTED BY: Scott Riedman, Waterfront Director 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No.  520.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  August 4, 2016 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Patrol Division, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT:  State Of California Office Of Traffic Safety Selective Traffic 

Enforcement Grant 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That Council: 
 
A. Accept a grant from the State of California Office of Traffic Safety in the amount 

of $280,000 and authorize the Chief of Police to execute the grant agreement; 
and 

B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $280,000 in the 
Miscellaneous Grants Fund for Fiscal Year 2016 for the Selective Traffic 
Enforcement Program. 

 
DISCUSSION:   
 
The Santa Barbara Police Department applied for and received funding from the State 
of California, Office of Traffic Safety, for the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program.  
The primary goals of this program are to reduce the number of victims killed and injured 
in alcohol-impaired collisions, as well as collisions that result from other common 
vehicle code violations.   
 
The grant covers the period of October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016.  The grant 
funds will be used to cover overtime and benefits for first line supervisors, officers, and 
staff who are assigned to meet the grant reporting requirements. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The funding from these grants will increase the department’s Miscellaneous Grants 
Fund estimated revenue and expenditures by $280,000. 
 
PREPARED BY: Lt. Duarte, Patrol Assistant Division Commander/lsp 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of The Zone 2 (Upper State Street, 

Samarkand, and San Roque Neighborhoods) Pavement 
Preparation/Overlay Project 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with Granite Construction Company in their low bid amount of 

$2,415,969 for construction of the Zone 2 Pavement Preparation/Overlay Project, 
and authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve 
expenditures up to $193,278 to cover any cost increases that may result from 
contract change orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid 
quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Flowers & 
Associates, Inc., in the amount of $179,905 for construction support services, 
and approve expenditures of up to $17,991 for extra services that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work;  

C. Authorize an increase in appropriations by $313,232 from reserves in the 
Measure A Fund for the Zone 2 Pavement Preparation/Overlay Project; and 

D. Authorize an increase in appropriations and estimated revenues by $54,400 in 
the Streets Capital Fund for the Zone 2 Pavement Preparation/Overlay Project 
funded from revenues received from Vista Oceano La Mesa Venture LLC. 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The Zone 2 Pavement Preparation/Overlay Project (Project) consists of repairing 
localized distresses, and/or grinding off deteriorated pavement, and overlaying with new 
asphalt on various roads throughout the City encompassing streets mainly in Zone 2 
being the Upper State Street, Samarkand, and San Roque neighborhoods 
(Attachment). In addition, the Project includes access ramps at thirteen locations 
throughout the City as required by Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements 
and as part of the City’s annual access ramp project. ADA requirements include adding 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 2  (Upper State Street, Samarkand, and San 
Roque Neighborhoods) Pavement Preparation/Overlay Project 
August 4, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

access ramps where they do not currently exist and upgrading all non-compliant access 
ramps immediately adjacent to roadway grind and overlay work. In conjunction with this 
Project, parking lots maintained by the following divisions or departments will also be 
included in the work: 
 

• Waterfront Department – Leadbetter Beach Entrance Lot and Leadbetter Beach 
Lot 

• Public Works Downtown Parking Division – Parking Lots 8 and 12, Helena Street 
Lot, and the  Enterprise Fish Company Lot 

 
These facilities have been included in the Project on behalf of each department fund 
manager to take advantage of economies of scale. 
 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
Only one bid was received for the subject work, as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Granite Construction 

Company 
Santa Barbara, CA 

 

$2,415,969 

The bid of $2,415,969, submitted by Granite Construction Company (Granite), is an 
acceptable bid that is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid 
specifications. Although only one bid was received, it is considered a fair price. 
 
The change order funding recommendation of $193,278, or eight percent, is typical for 
this type of work and size of project.   
 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Flowers & Associates, Inc., (Flowers) in the amount of $179,905 for 
construction support and inspection services. Flowers is one of the participants in the 
City’s Prequalified Engineering Services Program and is experienced in this type of 
work. 
 
REVENUES RECEIVED FROM VISTA OCEANO LA MESA VENTURE LLC 
 
Vista Oceano La Mesa Venture LLC (Vista Oceano) is a private developer that recently 
completed a subdivision, located at the 1700 Block of La Vista Del Oceano. A Planning 
Commission condition of approval for the subdivision was to perform pavement 
maintenance on La Vista Del Oceano. The developer has requested the City add this 
private work to the Project. Staff agreed and this work was identified as a bid 
alternative. The low bid amount for this work is $54,400, although the actual cost may 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 2  (Upper State Street, Samarkand, and San 
Roque Neighborhoods) Pavement Preparation/Overlay Project 
August 4, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

be less as the bid quantities are conservative. Vista Oceano has paid the full amount to 
the City, whose contractor (Granite) will perform the required grind and overlay work on 
the agreed-upon portion of La Vista Del Oceano. Upon completion of the work, the 
Finance Director will appropriate the actual cost, not to exceed $54,400, to the Streets 
Capital Fund and reimburse Vista Oceano the difference between the estimated and 
actual cost. 
 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH 
 
While advertising the Project, pre-construction notification letters were sent to property 
owners immediately adjacent to the planned work to inform them that any private work 
in the roadway needs to be completed prior to the Project. Following the award of the 
construction contract, staff will send an additional notification to residents and property 
owners to give them more detailed information about the upcoming work in their 
neighborhood. The contractor is required to perform door-to-door outreach, and contact 
all businesses affected by the work a minimum of two weeks prior to the scheduled 
work. The contractor is also required to deliver door hangers to each property adjacent 
to the work area 72 hours in advance to notify residents of the planned schedule. “No 
Parking” signs will also be posted by the contractor 72 hours in advance.  
 
FUNDING   
 
This Project is funded by Measure A (Transportation Sales Tax) and Utility User Tax 
funds, along with respective stakeholder contributions for their share of the work. Staff is 
recommending the appropriation of $313,232 from reserves in the Measure A Fund to 
cover costs associated with access ramps. There are sufficient appropriated funds 
within the Streets Capital Fund and the stakeholders’ programs to cover the cost of this 
Project. 
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Construction Contract $2,415,969 $193,278 $2,609,247 
Consultant Contract $179,905 $17,991 $197,896 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $2,807,143 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 2  (Upper State Street, Samarkand, and San 
Roque Neighborhoods) Pavement Preparation/Overlay Project 
August 4, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 

 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

Design (by Contract) $44,609 
City Staff Costs 30,000 

 Subtotal $74,609 
Construction Contract   $2,415,969 
Construction Change Order Allowance 193,278 

Subtotal $2,609,247
 Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract) $197,896 

Construction Management/Inspection (by City Staff) 120,000 
 Subtotal $317,896 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $3,001,752 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Pavement Zone Map 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/AS/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



ATTACHMENT



Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Of The Zone 2 (Upper State Street, 

Samarkand, and San Roque Neighborhoods) Slurry Seal Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Award a contract with American Asphalt South, Inc., in their low bid amount of 

$489,389 for construction of the Zone 2 Slurry Seal Project, and authorize the 
Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve expenditures up to 
$48,939 to cover any cost increases that may result from contract change orders 
for extra work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual 
quantities measured for payment; and 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Flowers & 
Associates, Inc., in the amount of $106,675 for construction support services, 
and approve expenditures of up to $10,668 for extra services that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The Zone 2 Slurry Seal Project (Project) consists of re-sealing roadways on various 
roads throughout the City, encompassing streets mainly in Zone 2 being the Upper 
State Street, Samarkand, and San Roque neighborhoods (Attachment). In conjunction 
with this Project, parking lots maintained by the following divisions or departments will 
also be included in the work: 
 

• Waterfront Department – Leadbetter Beach Entrance Lot and Leadbetter Beach 
Lot 

• Public Works Downtown Parking Division – Parking Lots 8 and 12, Helena Street 
Lot, and the Enterprise Fish Company Lot 

 
These facilities have been included in the Project on behalf of each department fund 
manager to take advantage of economies of scale. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 2 (Upper State Street, Samarkand, and San 
Roque Neighborhoods) Slurry Seal Project 
August 4, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of three bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. American Asphalt South, Inc. 

Fontana, CA 
 

$489,389 

2. Roy Allan Slurry Seal, Inc. 
Santa Fe Springs, CA 
 

  $571,620* 

3. VSS International, Inc. 
West Sacramento, CA 

 

$801,403 

*Corrected bid total. 
 
The low bid of $489,389, submitted by American Asphalt South, Inc., is an acceptable 
bid that is responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $48,939, or ten percent, is typical for this 
type of work and size of project.   
 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE CONTRACT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Flowers & Associates, Inc., (Flowers) in the amount of $106,675 for 
construction support and inspection services. Flowers is one of the participants in the 
City’s Prequalified Engineering Services Program and is experienced in this type of 
work. 
 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH 
 
While advertising the Project, pre-construction notification letters were sent to property 
owners immediately adjacent to the planned work, to inform them that any private work 
in the roadway needs to be completed prior to the Project. Following the award of the 
construction contract, staff will send an additional notification to residents and property 
owners to give them more detailed information about the upcoming work in their 
neighborhood. The contractor is required to perform door-to-door outreach, and contact 
all businesses affected by the work a minimum of two weeks prior to the scheduled 
work. The contractor is also required to deliver door hangers to each property adjacent 
to the work area 72 hours in advance to notify residents of the planned schedule. “No 
Parking” signs will be also be posted by the contractor 72 hours in advance.  
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Zone 2 (Upper State Street, Samarkand, and San 
Roque Neighborhoods) Slurry Seal Project 
August 4, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

 
FUNDING   
 
This Project is funded by Measure A and Utility User Tax funds, along with respective 
stakeholder contributions for their share of the work. There are sufficient funds within 
the Streets Capital Program and the stakeholders’ programs to cover the cost of this 
Project. 
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 
Construction Contract $489,389 $48,939 $538,328 
Constultant Contract $106,675 $10,668 $117,343 

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $655,671 
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

Design (by Contract) $44,609 
City Staff Costs $30,000 

 Subtotal $74,609 
Construction Contract   $489,389 
Construction Change Order Allowance $48,939 

Subtotal $538,328
 Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract) $117,343 

Construction Management/Inspection (by City Staff) $65,000 
 Subtotal $182,343 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $795,280 
 
ATTACHMENT: Pavement Zone Map 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/AS/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



ATTACHMENT



Agenda Item No.  10 
 

File Code No.  560.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Design Of Light Industrial Buildings on Airport Parcels 

17 And 22 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Kupiec Architects PC in the amount of $280,000 for design 
services of the Airport Parcels 17 and 22 Development Project, and authorize the Public 
Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $28,000 for extra services of Kupiec 
Archtiects PC that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Airport Department staff has been working to develop portions of its Specific Plan Area 
(Airport property north of Hollister Avenue) for many years. Several private developers 
have tried to develop the largest parcel (Parcel 22, located at 6100 Hollister Avenue) 
but were unable to put together a feasible project. In August 2014, City Council 
approved a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Direct Relief (DR) for the sale of an 
eight acre portion of Parcel 22. Direct Relief is designing their project now and has 
submitted their application for a Development Plan for a 125,000 square-foot 
warehouse and office project in July. The purchase of the property is expected to be 
completed in late spring 2016, for an amount estimated to be $8.7 million. 
 
Airport staff proposes to use proceeds from the sale to develop the remaining six acres 
of Parcel 22 and to develop Parcel 17, also in the Specific Plan area. At this time, staff 
is proposing to develop Parcel 17 with a single 5,000 square-foot building for light 
industrial uses, and to construct three to five light industrial buildings for a total of 
20,000 square feet on the six-acre remainder of Parcel 22. 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Design Of Light Industrial Buildings on Airport Parcels 17 And 22  
August 4, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work consists of preliminary design of improvements for tenant light industrial 
space, consistent with the Airport’s approved Specific Plan. The work will include 
development plans for Parcel 17 and the remaining portion of Parcel 22 through the 
Design Development Phase. Plans and additional information will be prepared in 
support of an application for, and approval of, a Development Plan by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
DESIGN PHASE CONSULTANT ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Kupiec Architects PC in the amount of $280,000 for design, and $28,000 
for potential extra services, for a total amount of $308,000. Kupiec Architects PC is 
experienced in this type of work and was selected as part of an RFP process.  
 
FUNDING 
 
The following summarizes all estimated total Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 

Design (by Contract) $308,000 

Final Design 400,000 

Subtotal $708,000 

Estimated Construction Contract w/Change Order Allowance  $7,200,000 
Estimated Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract or 
City) 

500,000 

Subtotal $7,700,000 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $8,408,000 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Airport Fund to cover the cost of the work 
covered by this agreement.  The total Project cost estimate is shown in the table above.  
 
PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director, City 

Engineer/OT/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  11 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance For Grant Funding Agreement For 

Recycled Water Plant Replacement Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Approval and Execution by the 
Public Works Director of a Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water Management 
Subgrant Agreement with the Santa Barbara County Water Agency, Pertaining to the 
Grant Funding Award of $1,045,222 for the City of Santa Barbara Recycled Water 
Enhancement (or Replacement) Project. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The California Department of Water Resources has selected the City of Santa Barbara’s 
Recycled Water Replacement Project for award of up to $1,045,222 in Proposition 84 
Integrated Regional Water Management Program grant funding. In order to receive the 
funding, a subgrant agreement must be executed with the County of Santa Barbara. 
The subgrant agreement has a term that is longer than five (5) years, and therefore 
must be approved by ordinance in accordance with Section 521 of the Charter of the 
City of Santa Barbara. 
 
Background on State Funding  
 
On June 17, 2014, Council adopted the Santa Barbara Countywide Integrated Regional 
Water Management Plan (IRWMP) 2013. State grant programs increasingly require the 
IRWMP in order to obtain funding for water related projects. The IRWMP establishes 
objectives for regional water management and identifies a suite of projects to meet 
those objectives.  

On January 17, 2014, Governor Brown proclaimed a Drought State of Emergency and 
signed legislation to assist drought-affected communities as of March 1, 2014.  The 
legislation also provided funding to better use local water supplies, including $472.5 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance For Grant Funding Agreement For Recycled Water Plant 
Replacement Project  
August 4, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

Million in Proposition 84 IRWMP funding, which is administered by the California 
Department of Water Resources (DWR). 
 
Regional Projects Recommended for Funding 
 
In response, the Santa Barbara County IRWMP Coordinator solicited projects for 
consideration into a 2014 Drought Solicitation Application. IRWMP cooperating partners 
recommended two projects for inclusion in the 2014 drought grant application submitted 
by Santa Barbara County: 1) City’s Recycled Water Enhancement Project, and 2) 
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board (COMB) Emergency Pump Project. 
 
The City of Santa Barbara’s Recycled Water Enhancement Project consists of replacing 
the existing recycled water filtration plant with a new plant. The existing plant 
technology, constructed in 1989, does not reliably produce water that meets State Title 
22 water quality requirements for turbidity. The new plant will be a microfiltration plant, 
which will consistently produce better-quality recycled water. The project is under 
construction and expected to be producing water by January, 2016. 
 
Funding Award 
 
The total funding request by the County of Santa Barbara was $4,094,280, of which 
$2,014,280 was for the City’s Recycled Water Enhancement Project, and the remainder 
was for the COMB Emergency Pump Project and some grant administrative costs. The 
State DWR has approved the application and awarded $2,124,564 in funding. The 
City’s share is $1,045,222 for the Recycled Water Enhancement Project. 
 
The DWR requires that the grant agreement be entered into with a single eligible grant 
recipient, which, in this case, is the Santa Barbara County Water Agency.  In turn, the 
grant recipient must enter into subgrant agreements with the other public agencies 
receiving the grant award. Therefore, the City must enter into the Subgrant Agreement 
with the Santa Barbara County Water Agency to receive the grant award. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Partial funding for the Reclaimed Water Enhancement Project is available in the current 
Water Capital Fund budget. The IRWM drought grant award of $1,045,222 will offset the 
need for Water Fund revenues or reserves to fund this project. The total estimated 
project costs are approximately $14.5 million.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/KD/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:    City Administrator’s Office 



ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION 
BY THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR OF A PROPOSITION 84 
INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT SUBGRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE SANTA BARBARA COUNTY WATER 
AGENCY PERTAINING TO THE GRANT FUNDING AWARD OF 
$1,045,222 FOR THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA RECYCLED 
WATER ENHANCEMENT (OR REPLACEMENT) PROJECT 

 
  WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara (City) has participated in the development 
of an Integrated Regional Water Management Plan in response to the California 
Department of Water Resources Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) 
Program; 
 
  WHEREAS, Gerald E. Brown, Governor of California, proclaimed a Drought 
State of Emergency on January 17, 2014, and, on March 1, 2014, signed legislation to 
assist drought-affected communities and provide funding to better use local water 
supplies, including $472.5 million Proposition 84 IRWM funding; 
 
  WHEREAS, City of Santa Barbara Resolution No. 14-051 authorized submittal of 
an application for  2014 IRWM Drought grant funding for the City of Santa Barbara 
Recycled Water Enhancement Project;  
 
  WHEREAS, the Santa Barbara County Water Agency, on behalf of the City of 
Santa Barbara and the Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board, applied for and 
received grant funding through the State of California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) Proposition 84 Drought Grant Round for two drought relief projects, namely the 
City of Santa Barbara’s Recycled Water Enhancement Project and COMB’s Lake 
Cachuma Drought Pumping Facility Project; 

 
  WHEREAS, the DWR has approved the grant application and requires 

that the Santa Barbara County Water Agency enter a Subgrant Agreement with the the 
City which will have a term of 35 years. 

 
WHEREAS, Santa Barbara Charter Section 521 requires that all contracts that 

bind the City for a term longer than five (5) years be approved by ordinance, adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara. 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 



Section 1.  All of the recitals herein contained are true and correct and the City Council 
so finds. 
 
Section 2.   In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City of 
Santa Barbara, that a Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water Management Subgrant 
Agreement between the Santa Barbara County Water Agency and the City of Santa 
Barbara for the Recycled Water Enhancement Project, is hereby approved. 
 
Section 3.  The form of the Subgrant Agreement, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby 
approved, and the City of Santa Barbara Public Works Director is hereby authorized 
and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the City, to execute the Subgrant 
Agreement with the Santa Barbara County Water Agency in substantially said form and 
any amendments thereto, subject to Approval as to Form by the City Attorney. 
 



Agenda Item No.  12 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Sole Source Authorization To Purchase Acoustic Testing Equipment 

For The Wastewater Collection System 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Approve and authorize the General Services Manager to issue a Sole Source 

Purchase Order to 3T Equipment Company for $51,510.64, for the purchase of 
sanitary sewer acoustic testing equipment; and 

B. Find it to be in the City’s best interest to approve equipment standardization for 
sanitary sewer acoustic testing equipment for the next five-year period, in 
accordance with Sections 4.52.070 (k) and (l) of the Municipal Code. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2014, the Water Resources Division launched its Acoustic Testing Pilot Program to 
test sewer mains using sonic wave technology. Staff purchased a Sewer Line Rapid 
Assessment Tool (SL-RAT), which is a portable onsite assessment tool that provides 
sewer line blockage assessment results in a fraction of the time it takes to either clean 
or to Closed-Circuit-TV (CCTV)-inspect the pipe. This new technology, where active 
acoustic transmissions are received and measured within a sanitary sewer pipe, was 
developed within the past five years. Pipes with low-score results indicate that there 
may be a blockage, and Wastewater staff can perform immediate follow-up actions such 
as CCTV inspection or cleaning. Pipes with high scores are generally found to be clear 
and do not require any immediate follow-up action.   
 
In the past year, staff has found benefit in the SL-RAT technology as it provides a 
reliable assessment of timely sewer maintenance needs in small-diameter sewer mains, 
which helps prevent Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs). Therefore, an additional SL-
RAT device was purchased in May 2015, which provides increased equipment 
redundancy when the other SL-RAT device is in need of repair.  



Council Agenda Report 
Sole Source Authorization To Purchase Acoustic Testing Equipment For The Wastewater 
Collection System 
August 4, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

 

The Wastewater Section is now expanding its acoustic testing program to include 
contracted services this year. This contract work will include acoustic testing of 
approximately 2,000 pipe segments this fall, while Wastewater Section staff will 
continue their acoustic testing of approximately 250 pipe segments per month. Between 
contract and staff work, approximately 4,000 pipe segments will be acoustically tested in 
2015, with the focus on 6-inch and 8-inch diameter sewer mains with 24-month to 60-
month cleaning frequencies. Since the majority of 2014 SSO events occurred in 6-inch 
diameter pipe with these cleaning frequencies, focused attention on these pipes is 
designed to reduce SSOs.   
 
In order to complete these additional acoustic testing activities in 2015, additional SL-
RAT devices need to be purchased. Staff recommends that Council approve and 
authorize the General Services Manager to issue a Sole Source Purchase Order to 3T 
Equipment Company for $51,510.64, for the purchase of sanitary sewer acoustic testing 
equipment.  Additional devices will provide for increased equipment redundancy when 
other SL-RAT devices are in need of repair. 
 
3T Equipment Company is the California sales representative for InfoSense, the SL-
RAT manufacturer. InfoSense is the only known manufacturer of sanitary sewer 
acoustic testing equipment. Sections 4.52.070 (k) and (l) of the Municipal Code 
authorize Council to purchase supplies, equipment, and services without complying with 
the formal bid procedure when it is found that the goods or services are only available 
from one source and that purchasing these goods or services is in the best interest of 
the City. Staff recommends that Council approve the SL-RAT, associated 
appurtenances, and software as standard for sanitary sewer acoustic testing equipment 
through June 30, 2020. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Wastewater Fund to cover project 
expenses. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/LA/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  13 
 

File Code No.  150.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Response To 2014-2015 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report 

On Zoning Information Reports 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Receive the Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report on Zoning Information 

Reports; and 
B. Authorize the Mayor to send a letter forwarding the City’s response to the Grand 

Jury Report. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On May 11, 2015, City Council received a letter and report from the 2014-15 County of 
Santa Barbara Grand Jury entitled, “City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Reports – 
Inconsistent and Unreliable”  (Attachment 1). Per the California Penal Code, Council is 
required to respond to the findings and recommendations of the Grand Jury Report within 
90 days of receipt which is August 9, 2015. 
 
On July 21, 2015, the City Council reviewed the draft City response to the Grand Jury 
Report.  Council requested that certain revisions be made and additional information be 
added to the draft City response, and continued the discussion to August 4, 2015.  The 
revised response letter is provided as Attachment 2. 
 
During the Council deliberation on July 21, the benefits and importance of the Zoning 
Information Report (ZIR) were raised, and Council reaffirmed its intent that ZIRs remain 
mandatory. Council also directed staff to review the scope of the ZIR with the intention 
of reducing the scope, as appropriate.  As part of the ZIR procedures manual being 
developed by staff, the scope of the ZIR will be analyzed and reduced where 
appropriate.  
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Response To 2014-2015 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report On Zoning Information 
Reports  
August 4, 2015 
Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. 2014-2015 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury Report 
Entitled:  “City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Reports – 
Inconsistent and Unreliable” 

 2. Draft City response letter to the 2014-2015 Grand Jury 
regarding the City’s ZIR program 

 
PREPARED BY: Susan Reardon, Senior Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



MAILiNG ADDRESS TEL: K805) 568-2291
URANfl JURY ROOM FAX: (805) 568-3301

cOuNrr COURTHOUSE email: sbcgj@shcgjorg
SANTA BARBARA. cA Slip:!! www.sbcgjnrg

q3 IO I
GRAND JURY

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY

RECEIVED
City ol Santa Barbara
CiI Counsi
ThS At aca a Street

Santa Racara CA 9310
ary .awn,0p

—A

Dear Cojncil Vembes

i behalf of *e 2014-15 Santa 3arbara Couptv Grano :y. I an erciosing cOpy of our repoq

‘ited City of Sonta Bathom lonina Infomwtion Report — Incons4stent cad UnrelioWe f, your

review ana response.

The Graid Jury. County CounseL and the Oresdirs adge. Arth: Garcia. —ave apoayec :qk
recort. The pert nen: sections DI tie Califo’a Pea Code -ecuire t—e 0 low s

you ae receiv g ts ,— wo wcrk og cays pro to :5 re ease :0 te

vo ra rotdsdDse this report war to ts cubic re ease ca:vorr a PeaI Code
on 933 C61f1.

— You -n.s: escor- :o ear! eevant :irdin arid RecniTencatio’ ri this re:crt
— VOL flSt suoqiitvo..r -orginal espase to re,di—g dge Arthur Garc a.

VOL PSt a so submit p_:n:ed ciny to th erureu iniparI2d Granc ry.
if cu 3e r e.e-rte: ccurt officer or agercy tsa, t’e espo::se
Time is not later than 60 days from the date of receipt Qf Din report.

- If yoLi are the governing body of a public agency subjeci ‘0 1 he reviewing

authority of the Grand Jury, the response time is not Later than 90 days o receipt
of our report.

Your response will be posted on the Grand Jury website and may be included En our official
published response report- Please send your response to:

ATTACHMENT 1



The Honorable Arthur Garcia and Santa Barbara County Grand Jury
Santa Maria Juvenile Court 1100 Anacapa Street
4263 California Blvd Santa Barbara, CA 93101
Santa Maria, CA 93455

Respectfully yours,

Sandi Miller
Foreman
201415 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS
Inconsistent and Unreliable

SUMMARY

Ihe 20 ‘4-15 Santa Barbara County Grand Juiy (Jury) received a number of reqtiests to
investigate the accul-acy and reliability of the Zoning Information Report (LW) and the impacts it
has on bulb sellers anti buyers of residences in the City of Santa Barbara (City). 01 (he 482
Cali ruia municipa] ides, approximately 20 require this type of report Carpinteria is the only
other city in Santn Barbara Count that requires this type ol 1-eport.

According to the City. LI Rs provide iniporlan t information to both the sellers and buyers
residential property by identi l*ing:

• zoning and permitted uses of the properly
• past City perini s and appn wa]
• any p0 lenti a] vi )l ad on 5 0 [City ordinances

• existing improvements on the site as documented in Ci Ly liles and archive plans
The Izey phrase here isas documented in City files and archive plans’’ II the City has no record
of a permit or approval of existing irnprovemenls the hui-den of pi-oof falls on the current
propertY owner.

he C oiiuii UTI i ly Dcv e opin en t Department (CD D), which issues ZI Rs, identities only the
hollowing as major violations:

1. illegal dwelling units
2, illegal conversion in habitable space
3 loss rmIparking space
4 impi-ovements within 50 feet of the coastal bluff
5. violations that pose an immediate fire or Ii k saty risk

When In aT or viol ati{ m 5 are i den ti lied. he report is given an enfo re emetit ease it amber and the
seller is given a nmnber to call in the Building and Safety Division. An assigned eHorcement
ofli cer will work with the seller to remedy the viol ati oil(s) -

No matter WI] en tIme y occtLlTe d. ni in or violations (Appendix A), can have serious i nan ci al
Consequences ftmr e seller, even if the seller did not cenmiit or know of the alleged violation -

While minor violations are not referred to en fo reem emit, the s tmh sequent buyer is required to
orre et these, before or si int’l tan enus ly when app I yi Ii g kir a building permit for finite

improvements.

The sell Cr 5 required, no later than five (5) days of entering into an ‘‘agreement oF sale’’ to apply
for a ZIR. As a result, the ZIR oflen conies near the end of escm-ow. Unexpected violations can

21)14-] S Santa Baxbara County Grand Jury



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

throw the entire hat Isac on ir o i c opard> and mary ye the h Liver a basis for renenotiaring the
price.

BACKGROUND

•Fhe hisicincal ‘inent ‘rhe 7utiit’ liifortmitioii Report, when it was adopted in 1974. was to stop
the proIiIraLi’’n of i[egu[ and unperriiitted rental LiriLts in garages and rooms being split in the
larger\7jcto nun homes ii the dow, ac wit area At a r Ii me lb a City had a lack 0P housing units
and the Ca jest way- to add c nero r I ii id at in any (sell em, buyers a]d developers) was to
increase the room count ‘vithir, the tar,tprillL e\I.t,rIg homes. garages. and outbuildings. rlic
result s ovcrerowcli ng, lac I. adequate parL i n, arid nindoi houses which depressed the
al tic nt adj ace ii p ‘per Lies Tb re I re IC we in tb I t’gets for inspectors were garage
efln\e1S,’Is and interior robin phits. In lie beginning, Zll{s were optional. Later they became
mandator’

t•Lthin a fe’v years. the expaniarI 51 illcaI dt’ch!ing nulLs lied been put in check, and neighbors
became the most etlicietit iLisLruInrLII nr lepUrLlng ihleil conversions. Currently, vigilant
neigLthocs pcrE,rrn a ocd serVIce Iir the cclrnn,rLnic> when they report illegal units and parking
problems vitliirr their ticighl’’ .rEiun,d.

At their inception, 71R’ c,vcuccl ouLl illegal urtirs and parkirw. they did not irieltude minor
‘iiIution:u. Thi’ praclice re.s’ultcd ill Sonte property o’vaers belieyiz’ Lilat ‘ince a ,iior 7W
hu’necl no viu,iations and they L9d [ILide no rtioditieat,oris. lie circuit repurL t’oLLId coultintue to

no violanions. today’s ZIKs have norrliurd iota cu’unhiui:utitin he Ci, zoning laws.
pertnits mid btuilding code kiday LrI.NpecLI’.II> ideiitiiy :01(1 doctinient major and minor
violations a prccrviuw the jIcalLb and ‘aI()’ O dic coniintunitv. Ilowever. CDD suit’ catuld

d:riiax..c. _tI ,‘-i:Iie-: I:ea_d: at’: sa:av’’

tie :norcvce :evl-.:i,cv lu: m_rrc at a’ .‘c ,Ccr .e 1Y) rued ra :5 ejIrer,:

S:,ce: .-<a:-i in Irte ‘Xe the .‘.r.,,Ir. a rerriw:r.ye:r.niicr. .r:I:a;Cc CK

Tcc-,,rue> axi cefl_a ;.j,, ,‘r w: ,d:ve; keorids 2cr:ri:r :‘:r En: r, :exb.. ecF s_s
,izs a:: ,I;rneoIns wale acre .a;iv rtaablr. H-tu-,e. (‘b’ ‘c’r,c

:ait aver sevent ‘ears. CS :Vr1a::::ri’ pru:.cr1rezuTa% .‘.e been fl:sI eJ eqrc rn,:ri
ud rd rciurr.ad. or ci’vh i :e,er,a,:I> ,uir_iei “jLi’g erris cs 2K 9”,.
iss,,e pHi ‘r :,‘ f-c cre:. ,‘r ‘1 bc Cr,r,

t’e2r1:s are .no:,i: :1:5,:. (u Starr c%.Ine% i’r:T.n n’er:% Ce ‘a rtlnixe:. Mary
wj:flcc,c, -id ‘w hr. ‘:a: ‘:€ rH’ .E:e re hi ‘ed t::d r:_cs are r9o3 S—af—’sue,
:is (,r) ha’1er ji JIcre%-’ r.ne . II:c barker :o.c us Fe :c rare :.ce:irnerIuna, Ft’!

ar,’,ner vr,)r—:’ ‘- :I: tie of :‘s-e:ie.-I. I his s prcict_ary Zistar—E, ac
Ct’c:jnejts crc ‘zen a:iss,r.c b:i: be .‘r’pr ,‘:ju h can-i,: be ‘cete;E. :he ir_occrr
Ex,rc;vr,cz wo:,IC v (Icc \I:I: •.

I ,-15 Santa l3aihara Conan Grand Jar>



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

A n urn hei- oF iii tervi e wee, told lie Jun r he CD D takes an ad . ersari al U Si lion Lo these alleged
vi >1 ati on which the hoc noo IC F’s [VS It especially i the ‘•i ol aLi C )fl 0CC tLlTed (lee ades and many
ow]] cr5 ago. Accord ii to C Li Li Ca if. c. or L}IC last lb ir years (201 0—2013) on average, 82
percent of ZIRs had some son t. iolatiori. This’ seenied like an unrealistically high nurnbcr to
the Jury. 1 lowever. when the I LLr a.4cd I or all ZIRs Ihr the month of July 2014. of the 52
reports itce ived. 16 had no I a L [0 fl. . r S pe ret ii L, It is hi ard to believe that over thrcc—qurors of
homes sold ii the C V uI S a liLa R aF’hai’a have :o iing and/or hu i’d ing violations that require
correction acid lees.

NI un huniecpwners and real
clear, the next 7tR “n the
Fl ann ing Iecuiiciac’ IL ‘ri
NeporrLtlg t.D the PIarmitI2
d Lscrcpanc cs. the CD U rcpl
the start LS no Iiinsr tlie,’e”
mode by the Cifi: arc

tnl,,,riatii’n On the properrv.
‘lOpe)’ iii, .‘k, thoro IL ‘i P40 U’.7fr

estate agents provided evtjencc that a’though One ZIR is deemed
sari [C pro pe rn ci a%: cite vi In or] 5, especially when a tl ifferent
Ill inspects the p[upcrh. The CDD is unapologetic about this.
c,in,rii,’spn rtgardi,ig who should be responsible for those

F-h F do “o [ let TIC ICC U Li ‘tab iii Lv in the here and flow, when
Fr, u her wo , It ,*ie n3Ie ‘toi is a,, /onier with the (,‘lsv, in i,vtakes

lb ii,i or the en, “C p’s Ii, ‘mci, ,,vner. I I we have no

re we ace a 1,1 nitab C’:’’’ Iii icr words ‘ csn the proper
•‘erbv.,r,,,dn/ 11w ,‘lL’ru’ p4211%’! tYiOk’e ,hic who/c. The CDD

thu eniphiasized that ifsoct,ctL’ir’g is overloinkec. it dues nut FiICLFi IL S approved)

The ReaL Lstatc I raci&r UiscIu%Lir Statement iTDS-l I] has been reqtcired tar all i’csidentia
ho Inc sacs in e S late i r cc I 7 ‘u/s/I peal,’ (,it’d Cod’ ,S’t’er/o,, ii I. L’ very k”i nil pr, phI en]
or •Jc&ct i required to he discklscil l,v the seller cr1 this font’. Uecat[se of this. i,ilniiatiin (Ill a

ilk hia become reck,,idanl in flatLy eases as t9r as health :eid safe’’ iSsuc, are cp,nctrned,

Mat,’ buyers request home inispccr’.IIIN. cu,iducted h” l’ccn’cJ prutessiorials “‘ho arc far more
qi;al.ied :.v. a P1 i. ‘w >r F ‘oh Jeer1’ :,,y, eqi:”ale:ti r,’rET:oc,ri:r1:’ii,s,

p d t’’:e;eree t.—, o;.le Xcvi X’ rCiaircc : :w,cJsc a:d .‘:‘.es,’ Se
B,: “‘,e ( D) ut!: relee tare :ir IIr,,:v’,’, rLd’L.’:,e:e’x’: tr:u’u’lr V

Is ‘L r:erahzc ZLRs, ‘lx’ u’ tnnlJ:,.’.,:r’:e e’a trw, being rerxre’

METHODOLOGY

Jhe J-j:’ zlcr.’.’cd :.::;::I;:i _zc’’p--er: El :ar.rer u: : cciii esu,te ce::is and erc-,:ors
rel:Kaw:Krs... r:Es’a:: ‘cc-If r’r%fl,.r: ar.E i.’er rca] estue a2’,tr,v—r:’_a:ej,ra:ossi,r!Z— P-c
Jun c?1e ‘‘hi ax. i-iIerie’et ncscl_;_es nan other i:uI:::pa.:tic. I: “e’eve. Zs.
n’x:..’ az ‘we ‘at:i: bce:’ rc.’prc::,,:t ZIRh aIrc ‘nj .:“‘,Its .r rrorUse.al:ge5
L-e ,I;rv a]sc alrncec ‘K •.ar::i::i t ‘rut it “jr ‘r,ce:’re ëes i.eJ ‘ .ic recennendarors af chic
‘‘‘‘ G:e:i, s “C.: as I: c,Nse_,er: I’:t’ C,_’w’ \lee:r’:.’

......S...... rc._,_,’ i-’’ t_,’..’’,’’— ‘.c;errc’,cr 1/,
‘;i:J (‘‘‘‘ ‘.a’:--’c i,’.:t’

5 j:a 3:,rbam C.;ualv t:rar. j,jy.



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

OBSERVATIONS

Following a (_ity Cornicil Tileeting Ui December 2013 when the Santa UarbMa Board of Rca] Lors

argtid thor Z I Ks were being abused by the CDD. an ad ‘nc Workirtg Group ritado LI[} n Lhree
plarutiitg con,Lniscioners two p]anning staff, three reaL estate brokers arid Lt’u real e,iaLe L1lf

ns- ranncd to research Lhe problem. The Workinc Group decided (.1 OCLIc ,!rt three ‘‘lain topics:

• .kc[rnir,istrative Zoning Approvals
• Adrr,irdsrarivc :\ppcals
• EoL1,I:,L (‘I,a,,2e5 Ic be ?IR Forni

‘a—c :T:rc --.e ..‘:i trec—— lie cxx -rae r:r.cj:i l:K tJJs :L:riee vi

ri. ns .r. er ure :l-e --—ratrl Drc-oess. ‘Lea crca:cs scHr:s s<rcpir :.v V W WI?
‘he re’ -. Sin : the i:v _-ne d zcDa:lces xtwd ibC-e5 a% :• : c io.-::p Dl’

.ri% ri Inc ari>s:s. -c nvav :Hc dTV • e--- -i Tie 12L)_) sr;
::r Iccay s ZRs stew 5_I:’ r-e-r-ec-r: d:ccrera-i. — cii ‘cm: -:jiaber c: CJ<
i finn rIr I ThUG 2 j5 ta-rec _L-E,g ce te;:e cxc C:’ clap. .vce U rc k ‘ I

‘us ta:-u le Ci: —.- _._:__: ,‘ cr— rcs5 :5 rrc,,!;:r i. :1.; 01 fr,
h r: n:rrr-?-vc rdoc,

ec—2 ft:r a n::nxvr cf xa:rca:lcrs. sea. C ta: nr. “C- - U CC: 1% .ZC:. :1:. n: S -I:: arc!
P Ic ss cliii s who experiene ed the 10110w iTig ecre K 7., Tn a ]iifjrix lati oil Rope rt
Ii screllalic jes:

• A :L,C hL:: crra - :V: \.j tIer.J:ed ecrccm ana b:b ]r;vc i:. Tie ( Zr

rJcrc-: dcr.’l:,iei TL e-r.ec’vuei c were ab.e te eh:a.i: re raI p i.

cn,ra c.’i—:rae.c,- i,e i:einc the 3.s.t::ed reo:::s.
• Oi, icneawereocvoj eri ZIR fle W \ Ca: I.e :)rCrI V. ha: .I.r:,s:e

tur:c v :- ___errew 71R.i:ed r::n:r e v.c.arie::5 ix.: .tecxcJ K.,ue —Ic

H. i-i w k -uTh: c-c Ire-u fence ±a: frr r,:an’ vcar aI . r.rTe,- Cr ±CrC’
H.., “let akec ‘n- te aai o rove :l:c net. :11 rie:t,gcr tuie :cr r
:.ealri: a:id cretv j:vj_:- —

Vei a—eu I-r ceri’cr,c:. he Ta.a:._ red :In Jtrvt.r’
:1:1: k:,c: s:-s :-e e—Ke _a’ nr-:de Sr new ct d c::ev ci rW ,2.c . H,
-..I-,-e, ::er .. - re—-,-e tnrr-cr.i.

• \nclhcr solior irtid the Jun [he /IE on his pro],env ijidicarod a nod-: had been huill
without j,orruils_ ccr, though lie deck wls pIiers oji hare gg’urjd. ] he thy addcd an
anicnd,neni that said it would not enforce the vjojal,on. hut tI,c a]so would not remue it
IrlAil the ilk. The seller paid an attorney 7] 7to ct Ihe iiinrtle, cleared up.

• \not]icr I,ucr pat-chased a house in 2011. and 11w ZIR was cicr. When it rcucnn] WeliL
back c,n, (ho market. the hR indicated a deck dial bad xci] tijeru lay 21) can: Was illegal.
and lit Own Ct nit’s t oh Win a permit to cithicr rento v c I tir rchui Id the deck 1, wet, Id not
be pennied in its present state. Estimates for this came Lu S7c.(l(I0. As ti restril. the final
price to the buyer was reduced by $50,00( When dealing wit]] the nc&: buyer. the (Its
changed its mi rid and all wed the deck to remain ‘malt rird. Ii oiler I I no recourse as
the property Lraliser bad been completed -

1 2014-15 Santa Barbara County (hand Jui-v



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

A seller was iritóiilied [lv (DI) scaif, “there is evidence that you have moved a door
and thidow.’’ I Fe Sc! [Cr hired two contractors to confirm tIns had not happened- Stiff
did not otTer a oy CVI a Ce LI irLL i lu td - The Upshot Was CDD C ssenti ally said ‘n ever
mind.” Scill. lw selkr [tad to pay he contractors for revised plans and the City fe’
revised [‘tnit.

• The Ci y ‘Va tired a seller to rerihn-e a catport that had been in existence for 50 years and
bad been reported as lega or’ three prior Z C ft cost him $20,000 to verify the carport

bade’ istecl front rhe tiute rite house was htLilL.

• in a similar irus[aIIce tb FI!.II1CtITer was cited for a deck show., ineon-ecily on the plans.
Elowet et. the cI1uIitea LI Ic inspecror obsened were due In chaiiges- at the time of

crIlts(rtw(iun. ft cost rude rho’, 54.000 loger lie violation removed. but this Was less than
the cog Fur the (ire’s clermiand hr cleniolirioti.

• A SOIl. tryitug frI sell his dtccascd iiicther hattie. received a /1k stating the gal-age had
been moved frotit it. ,rLgInaI SIte hccttise ofthe window and door placement. resrtlling in
a viola(ioti. He LciIl’l Lu l’cdte a JO—year-—old photo of iirnccllal lie age ol6 taken in
front a! the earuee sElOttilig the oricirml plneetitetil had mit changed. When originally
detelIpel Ibis tract hn.l the opliort ot localirtg [lie garaoc in diIIrent configurations on a
silt. rate inspector had clone proper research, tElls “ouIl have beet, kiiovti.

If the PT H dctcrnui.tcs [beLt L!,LLtinn dlcLLnletlts st’pponu Ftc violation chriuld he
provtded. CtIrrcmi(lv. ‘up hi ih ‘dIet t!. provide docun,entmior, that proves alher’sie. The
hI learned (tie oitic.Li U! CDI) th,•tt •Ve believe we can’t StLpport ermndLLtberln in all
Lniprclvcnlertts hecLLu’e sve doWt Lnc,w tar sure itrI,cv cause tire or li[ aIa’ risLs.”

There is n, h,mlal appeal procesi nor does CDI) rec’InInend tine. Rsrelv are the Lms dispuled
slitee thee often conic so clr,:e to ([mc end the escrot’ period The nest Sen us rohlem with
tac d:srrc process is Hr. .i e- to te -rrma-_l’.v::n .e refl-,:. e:tin:

Hi c..e<:-n. ire :adrea$ S4 :Or he fR r-j r :iin-4: :
.J-ree-lue rLuj:,irt :ds:.;iee \::,‘eal •.‘-pe. nr,-zes , :.

,. je.e.&. pile Ia

j: ce:: es:r*isl:ed w:i.c: Hre,’,—: ,H-:-e T-JCe55,

(_lcirjv. ::Krc are to cEeLts ccnC w::r] :5 Urter: rxrs.

cre jr tevn. ,eaI_.i:r Ir:::is Ha: o hL :ecaIes or c;vneis Sri i:(ZY)
freis 1 .mpca::c to correct tic :eced c.-.I:,. I. tee a 1c.cinic-:’:rQ c-..ieri
—er:thrc’ iia’i r ocie co tot .

S.:Ojpj -WI lie I-re ic rL’S Cc t,xls rertc: or Jtrec_:.,i tese
,:rcT .:iJr -i-c-re er:er]:ir:L eu _.i lie cit_it: rre Tte CDZ) :rears :o
t—,bci-sed site e31;._::r I. :;r:kec’ar;.

‘I.

IS Sist 3. than C.., ,nrd in



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

U e City of Ca rpinte r La 5 at! IL tC rts i rig c on (rats]. I a] so requires an Ju spection on Sale Report
which costs $245. .gain. these hezart a the 80s because of illegal dwellings. Inspectors
review the file prior to visiti rig (lie ptuwr and take relevant papers with them and then discuss
with the soller what needs to he do’ie remedy a situation. Staff spends 30-45 itilnules
researching the o thee I es. lb ii %flt C r II spen LI approximately 30 rnimttc s on the property
and at the end at an ins[eeti’i. ‘and tlw homeowner a copy ofthc report. Total time fi,r stair
and inspector is I .75 h c urs Lfl d tip to IWO lOLL ts for a complicated file. Iii contrast (he CDD al

amta Barbara S UI es Ce r tIc rrt I’ L is in. do to cc Ft plc te the ZIR with’ tj I 5 working davs a her an
appfl cati on is it cc ed. . ild I ‘[idly, rite J LI fl• was told Santa Rarbara nspec.t ITS view the
pnipertv flrg and her, research d[e tiles. it, the itirys opinion, this is inel1,cieit.

A Carpirtleria LEtapoctor cs(inrt;t(cd Irialor iula(iomw alt ahoul. one percent. The discrepancy
process 5 sLinpIc. When ott site. (lie lIi’1,ecLiir elk he seller what needs to be clone to remody
a nv vic at i o ci. Re nt cdi es earl hc disc i.LIse I wt ru rite i tupecto r until both sides arc sali s lied.
\\:Licrc there ire clerical CITOrS. tIle City will cleati OICFI, tip.

The cost ore City ofSanra firbara LIFt is 465. which is lie liiizhesl in the state, however. the
(owl cn.st can easily exceed l,otJ. Ir a hotnei’wmtcr lbp[ite tile ttndtngs and staff does
aij<li(jonal rescarcE,, the ojsts begin (ti c’ejlale H chamwes tn[Lst be ‘jade, new permits must he
scqtiired, ccni iftEte pcntiit or a demolition. Tlik would be ii’ .9dditicIl to any requirctnen( 11w
new plan’s. While Stat[Usa:.% LIlt departnient is tCcI[Ue neutral’ these chuxgcs arc hi ceess oF
other jurisdietir!rt., t.)ther n’tim’icmpliries cEujrLe ttIILcll less for this nc ot’rcport: the City [‘los
.‘\ngclcs cliLiret S70 ZL P,tsadcmLm S l(i, Ven(ttL, $35, nrjd Cai1’icttcria 5245. ci-ordin to the
(‘[flU 7[Rm alone eiiera(e ‘‘vet $Ni.i.oilt., anrttiarly.

ANALYSIS

_.le I7Ic z:.::,Ies ::K ucr rae ic Ht.er Iv::’ .9 Rca’ [sL9’ _rarIsor Dis.:sur,r S:_:r.r.’a’
35—F.’. :‘. i’,a’r’,ti.ii. S.,L:r,cl:, Talc ssoriiial ‘vr tver’ac a ro.e%:orr

:T:seeii,’;: reT’ flea. jose :cdr:s: protc.s..:’a Easre., .rc .e:Ier n.• ce :e .n:nfl

h-jr—arE ,‘c’arcr.r 3::’ :Ic:d%. %__:r a ‘:“re’ “ —ara?-,:oo vir accqtrc

.125t0 ac s:wcl svsIc:i: ,,:W. w_:e- ira ‘‘e ,,.•.1”s ,te-e, to reef ieee’s rersir rer:ac:r’.
or .:‘ r:.-.er: ‘--—t-eII-

. lIe.ze or :;i:safe iKco .:rr,3rIs are er’ leuy.ca arj r,l’
C :ii;a t:e Zc,’u’i ;I.r”jrIrar.r. :—te

:ic”ever. he p:.-e.’1ieI: :irair. t:- ILi Irle r.e’fle d:I:2enee C: it I_’DD is K- ::rrct “.1,;

5,1:5. ‘,v:lEc’. 2cnclait’ ,dE:I’u’rj ‘k.rle ,_ :e (h. Niere tar cr_c t:c Cd te Jjr’.
“CT :;rlr frr xr’rcl’i eone er :1:030 are niJire .:‘c::s deej te Ci::. e’ree:s re

C’Y) e e,teI’eci C L e I r nh,einoe I a_ec-s

r’srec’ors .vvai to I: CC tW.: :krr re’:. r.’h- ‘: : .‘w’h’Ie ne’v level — regu ,ariers arc

aprl:e.n E:Ka:IsisteriI ‘,‘::‘ rr rirce.ar nj esen. c eccasic’s, w’ Irk’ sa:nc i:’D.a_a, r.

i’:Cxi’r,r’c he is’ 71e-I’ra I:’, c ZIG :l a ri ulir Dxx-r1’ Sra:ni::12 *e rcr:J .*m I

,4- I) Santa 3arhara Ccun:v Uracj



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

to 20 4. [his property remained unchanged during these years (no jew COFISEZile nail. additions or
deriioIioni performed) arid was repoi-Ied as lo] lows:

Ziks On One Properly For Yc!’ n 1997 o 20 [4

Rdroouu — —- Full Bnthroo’ns Hdlt Sath’oonn t1nrjcioiis

—

________________

4

___________

- Yoiiing& Bi,i[diiia
200I)

___________

4 —

_____________________________________

2002 4 -I i[d the

— Rdn

- ‘ll rt:. Ensrr:-:: :c:-r ,_-r_ .m1..i a:c !f.,e ,r.:

‘rrt_i:’.. tr :__l:_r: -

I-I Jre- e:can,le. a prozertv .isre,r a ZR 2s .: :n-.-fr ic Cry ::ie:lea::x:s !: :i

.rs a iblex. One ZE{ ia,r a:cd ruat ince Ii:e—e -. er -w pe;rr:ts z lenrer: ur .

rssJlrK-C the u piex vas Fc1lter TI-c re’ 7lR )j tire prxvn nzrJ:l:ars;iwc twre
“Crc !rJ >-r:r :: 2T: :1 :-:ra)- -i :1- - C50.. 7enir:14 was r : pre sin I:.. .1:.: : I:c : r : : C fl

l:a-rxerc :l:-t

-‘ “L,uen ptt Tw rropcr eider a cicud uu::ch is reflected I:: —c t,[L’l ‘K•_’i cec’

re .,,.e e,irrrle, Urese dacisci:s can cause ard>l:rp .:F l:-’,i-c.ui!- it: cl:lJ:cr_a_y. IC

(it, s :cs:der_rs. Many are eficr. urk: stre tu >e n:.ie:.rNea*_ Jr r:iea::xi

cIr iii: rrses. -‘ v:c -ar-cr- :S :c-iu:- c-itt. aIr etlen :i-c’- :.; (. lute::’ L:a-s. Bark>’ ,rc:
s!t:ats Jficr —e: or: a:: i;lr’ l- d_*essed iina:d:e:c.v ciar .2 ::tc Je a

:r:insac:.r: : re_l> It ri—c *:ver Dzks ru: .rc.<rog.. f Q-l:ar.% c.I)cccn— Tire
rr,.e>rr> ‘vl. “cU0r flJr ±2:11:12 cost :xrcd tev Fe 02:u;. .:osr :5

r:e Ier nv :i&:o ‘at: ue
—

ri. IV rrle xirI;e: I circe, :e tiala:ia:i. t,..:lt_

pays :rs. pal-s or 2a::c c-re rarc-i.L —n L,,nm:s:,: Ic..?.rs rc:.r,: axc’:Ii IS .2,rl,tic.j.

tre buv-rrCu a varI; ‘i.:,a clear 71R s::c( ‘rxe:(ei 0: a

fiuiure. The next Time the house is cn the ,narlsi he eune1[ se]kr ha no piuaranteo :iDlslbn
wI I] ot be cited. v 0] a’ iii> the fi Din e IwneT 1 d not corn in it. bill will hr rccj U rod t aba Ic.

the wurding 1)1 the v,olation in ZfRs is ofien ambiguous. .4 Planning (.OlmnissiOnor was
irotibled b’c such vague terms as mighi encroach. t’nieliiirug appears IC ihere is
evidence.” and appears. considering the weight the ZIR now ]aas. Ihis is prt,cuai-l troubling
when ‘he City feels no oh Ii gali on to ton firm this, but iuisi sts II] at lie Ii ni V. ncr in ust provide
pr Diii thaI the property, in its existing state, is not iii vie I at en. In’ ci es Ii n lv. II itV Attorney
cppn yes this vague language as “intend onal lv qtial i fled lang ‘age. Tb CD I, is pro po sing that
in the case of ineonsistcneios/disoropaneies between ZIRs. ii would only rotor for enforc.ernent
the creation of all ii Ioga dwelling unit md [he physical loss of parking. ‘V hat creates a “habitable
space” appears to he discrel.ionary. The CDD stated that areas LLSCd It iT living, euling. or sleeping

2014-15 Sanla Barbara County Grand J,iiv 7



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

arc what makcs a room Thahi able.” Hoever. [or 25 years a storage room in lb home that had
bccn coii• cried to an cill U e aId tL L to con duct bu si lie ss as such during that time, was doomed
an ui’pcnn Ited “]iali tab I space. C I ire nil, staff is pro pos big chanajil g hahi tahl c space to
tlic creati { m el n C” II III r area o t net’ conditional space. - At thc City Council in cc tin g. this

was de Hn ed as h a ii h Cal tl rid F CO nd it Lolling. - A nteinber of the Co uTici I asked “fn your
mind. is this prec’e?’’

In an other pro po 5a CD U IS S LI gec Sr rio a F [C . \ dmi ni strati v C Z mill g Approval Process to
reduce or Wave zoning staticl&ds ttlicri there arc unctear c.i ly records, discrepancies in the record
(including in the Z IRs. or t cvi don I [haL I he un p ft cern en I Ii as been there for a very long time.
i.e. 50 vcars. When (licrc are unclear records and lisrrcpanc[es in the records, and it is cvidont
an ilnprovccncn( vas on (he site prior to 1q74, those improvements could be eligible fin this
aliproaI. The t’•ord c,,uId’ i problematic as it invokcs a judgment call which could he
reversed 1ie,i hue ho[ic again collies cr1 ritarkor. [lie Jury has concerns about this.

I au n v , re often Ca I lcd o Lit ‘hc ii [IC [I Spcc k ir d aorees with the l ndings of the
pletiotIS inspector. his proposal ap[ioars Lu, set up uncertallit) or hitiire sellers and buyers.
With tlic (.DUs more vigorou% l[lhRt—u1l pU[iC, tile .It[n• is concerned as to how violations.
both major and [iiiriflr. vill h ircLLel. Widuotil ielithiliiv, /ifts arc a wortfihss cloctuneni
both the buyer and lie adler.

Absurd as it suu,uds. portion, )arOc5 risod tbr storage a doomed to hate created a “physical
loss [if pailcint,” md theretore a nnaior violation /R will slale. ‘. ..Ihe ‘VL}rkheRC[l and
cuh’,uets encroach into the rcqtiircd parkirm area in 110 garage Ra City 7.ciiiing Ordinance, two
covered parki’m spaces ore req’.[ircd arid must He maintained at all ‘Flues. This nteans a 20 by
JO loot covered tinobsta,ctccl panktng space h Ha1i [FTC yIryIc is ILsed rot a workshop or For
at°rir_c. LI out he clea’ed OLLI fli,.s s where coimnorl scnsc coeics into pav. lie Pun
t,nderstanda the ‘iced li,r u,EH.Iteer parking. nit ho rcqt[ircriicrim tir :1211 by 20 loot cleared apoe

cx-.: a overly Icarricilve ax.: :r.:’r 5+0:0 40 ,o:-rs ,‘ I :!er roe it,
hi-. i:r Civ s::aj.o rce.iirc aor b:x Hi he Santa Da,or’ ‘na;c.
iccuirhus ‘.-‘cr ra.”. %eers esce’%; :ri,i Ic ,—_e--.l.Lxcns ieed—o ‘:

v sod.

(‘u)N( HS1O\

\.:e:o -:pTi_L :rie’<Iic:iIilu’. i:J:,_.- 5 Scnia Jaruara Cc’t:,:v :.rai:L h._r> rcrrL,s tic:

un:e Zcrr,c l’,it’rn:aiiri: ‘ui.1t la,j al %ri.ri ri,lo p• r ser.i::

tern cvercrcv.r.c. tic 2.15cc:’ jp ‘.t,:b hen a’d Ie ro Pcrier h_olc ct leevearo to;’
once lao Vt Kr : Scc:y:c .s-h: e ,‘ ucze< rrcv’::s hisien-, :h L_R process c:’a:uod arZ
saf: [cg,-t p:. C,,e .flCi. js,’s:rets m.r:o:jccd S_.CT:C.

ix::i-jc:i’r::O’c Rca E’:,;:e T’a’.sar JSJJStre S:.:oacr: 02,1 ‘er aSe_ac- N.’rr_e

::spec:a’rs. ::e:I:, 02,1 5a:iv stacs - :vvrc’:ah’ _e’LcnNe. ri ,,1e,-,:—eJ ‘> ?rofessionZs
in :l:cir k.ds I 2C r,lr ::c r.:c.’ ‘ncr’ e::r.ede rreser”e re.gl:ociaoads aa,nsl
e:oro:owd::i ::a’c bc,,?u’ic ir.:.a a:,l .,l’aIy.

S 2j 4-’ $ Santa Barbara Cur,m’ (__J J’ar5



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

The (i ty of Santa Barbara needs to stand by the Zoning in’ cinliati Ii Reports pmciuced by the
PLui tang Division of the Community Development Department. Th f’.Ur-mEse7kcs-mUstbe—

I a ‘do is tin professional and un Jtir to the in n ICC it pco ji! inp r v r my ii to sell their
homes. tile onus should he on the City to prove that ‘‘olac’,,’’ eisns and riot art the seller to
ro•e tlmt cite does not exist.

Once he (_‘Lty aHIcs ILS ollicial sea] to the d,cuntcttt. Lt should stand behind its stariarid Lhe
inlronyiatioii it pr I Lde%

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Finding 1
‘ tic-ia ‘v of carra BarEr-a N irraIir ejx :i:sliljle.t ii.

.xipra:t: rLrpJse. tc sLate r rcL:r rir’ :ele sa:cni;aI.ls ir a-.wI. z Rd :u:e

I,a,.s or E):ch>urc >Lnerer -

Recommendation 1
flt: tue Civ a’ Santa 3aroara dccarc Zo:,i:, hirtalir’ lq- vl:sLn iii :ed ar

nturniati onal ptH pox-s only -

Finding 2
- pretcc 3 eta Sr,Ia Ba* . Crrr1LiE S )e t*pa:f;:t Lprmtaat s ha: ii
.rtorn’aE’: ar:1: ruled h (c Plr,_::_g Tev*iciaz:.lir.specter. it is bsL:i:cd lne’cr

r.:cJ cid ::al .:1er: Tm: ——.c:e prr-.tti:s c::sencc. rc :sce

Recommendation 2
ru a 1: 1 Sarru: _a— .rcur:i e ,_riev Jeparnea i::sz::::e a7a.-c. Li::: -:

:a1crirj: :trj:e I-itt .:e pcpiu tered ojr:r.c :m .rc:,: :,w.,rr’ U:’ the CL’ tl:e

tie a .c:_.ai pr iel:si etcsrac.

Finding 3
Hnnaeiv,,ers. lIkT having spent many hundre.U& ilten tI]’iJssl]ds of doIlkrs 10 es-trthlisIr that an

iIIi]’TcrveIlicnl W5 icrrnittetL and that the Cin was incorrecl. xliii hear he cost 0, the
I, gal ion -

Recommendation 3
it at if the alleged v iii ati ens prove t., he incorrect, the ( dv of S .9!]’ a Ii nil a ra mci Tl•IhtLl-se lie
ho In CII Wi er hr all costs inc tirred in the subsequent invest gal o I]

Finding 4
A Cdv of Santa l3arha,-a Zoning In himiation Re],on with no violations does not guarantee a

I Ut ui-c report tt•i Ii no show alleged unreported violations by prcvi oils ow iicrs -

2014—15 Santa Barbara Count>- (1,-and JuI-y 9



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

Recommendation 4
Ths lie City I SanLi Barbara provide certainty to lie bt’yc r by cern Iv ig each Zoning

In I urn’ Lion ReporL as acc urs.Ce.

flndin S
a vic,Iatiuti rcpud on a City of Santa Barbara ZOnLLig littc,rit,ata’ii Report Is IIant{ to he

inconect the report is amended but the i llcgcd violation L nol necssan I rernve[ h, the
Conimuitiry Devdoprneat Dcpartmcnr.

Recommendation 5
Lcrr a:oritati.:r_ kerr jrx in Ie i1tT—ecl. ii viola:en or

_fl:ECIV rrc::t

Finding 6
u ;,rrai j?pea_ Iarcce55 u: in_text to Jisninto ;,- Ft ri Jct_Lat .tDnrciIs p0_ness.

Recommendation Ga
*e City c S anita Ba_—n,ara a r’.i nit ar area. pot ne Lx;. C] - re in U: sice:fle3:ar

Recommendation 6b
I hal lie Zuntng Iii FULL] n Report “C] tide a prom ne nti’ slated rid d C U”, c’tcd appeal

Finding 7
fl:e (mv Zo:r:rc rtiarr:3::.:i -t---.-r PLnri,:a Ie-&nnti, I nrc:-, u. I. rtniv reseacl
::k-:rra pc-rv rerzs rri;r U tic <it.

Recommendation 7
ar;jn_’ TetZtn:icna L cspec;o:rev;rw e:n-.n .t:’ 7n,nr n a_c !%L.

finding 8
he basic c,,ct Cit uI• Santa RarI’,,-;t Zenbig Jiiferi]]sIjoi] Kepon is S-1(,S.oi,. IhC higliesi in

lie SLoe. (iLher nn’nicipaiities charge consideraNy less.

RecommendationS
j he price ion- a Zoning lnlbniialion Report should be consisnei]l will, other municipalities.

Finding 9
The requirement that a single —family reside rice main lain a ci set ed - in’ ths In tic’ eLI. 20 foot by 20
foot parking space is overly rcstriclivc.

Recommendation 9

I 0 2014-] 5 Santa KaThora Coanly Grand Jury



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

I thc City to wri Ic thi parking 0 rclinance requ irotnont jct a in o rI r ii Ic man ncr while
kcçin on-sheet parking under control.

Finding 10
Fhcre i nu .raiI1ng manual for staff to conduct curmihent 7unLnz f’lIIF1nstioti Report

fl4WC Liens and reports.

Recommendation 10
Tint i he City of Santa Liarhara write a dcLJ led hrutninz n;iIl Lial [C LILLIL the research ol ic [Cs.

i• iXXU

REQUEST FOR RESPONSE

P.
- a 33. etuF .rc’ :c co enuneil a:V

ci lra:rc in mis ro port :srrqt.e <[l :rrp —c U;: iim to he ‘hi -

recemxnz::zMions :‘a:_r_’:-’ rr—ner V jhw.ii2nrc be ajccrcd :Krs tor ms rcpjrL
w Li F Liar) aatod rc, n_rn e pcr - br eac -

City of Santa Barbara City Coundl —90 Days
F’lmrc - 2.3.’.. e. &

5. ca. —. I,. dr I

21)14-I $ Santa Rarbaja County Grand Jury



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

Appendix A

Minor Violations Listed on ZER’s issued during July 2014

Zoning ViolMions
• •IRo workbench tnd cahi ncts encroach nro the required parking area of t]le. garage- By

Cliv Zontng (rd’ narlcc Lw! i covered parking spaces are required and must he maintained
at all Limes

• Traib cans and a wood pie ire hei rig rI• red [sic] in the reqiüred interior setbacks
• •iiic trash encLosure cnr’ache [‘ic] ilk the front yard setback
• •llic viewing deck encr.’;tcFies into rite required interior setback
• The de ‘ci ted 5t0 race sited rid p [a v h Lice eric ri I ic b liii Lb e required interior setbacks
• •[hc tbnt frilce ceet’ [It ‘nLiuiuin aLlowabLe height ofthree and one halllèet wiiilin

[rJ feet a [otiL lc,L [inc jul o.iihiii [dicer ofeirhcr side ofa driveway for a djsiance of
20 ICCL buck from Lhc [rc.int [or Line, [lie front hedur ecceds he required height ui [nec
Lnd one—haLt Leer 6-it when Located within a triangular aTra tin either side ofa
drivecaa niea,ured as folLows: A W[’eri a driea directLy rht’ts a portion ofa street
improved with a sidewalk arid a parkw:u>, bc LliaIlg[e is nieas(Lrecl on two sides by a
distance oftec, reet LIJH trim ihc ‘dc ola dri wL> and en feet lO back from the
front lot hrtc

• The storage [ied eircituacltes jar!) tie rcqtiired interior setback
• The p[av srn’erurc cncro.,c es rita lie required illLer’Ir erhaci

• •Lhc l;NO pccThLt toer [.u.1 bc ‘car .iewing t{e.s in rite rear ‘ard eqiired in [go •fhe
deck reqt’Lrc5 a clew buiLding pcirliL and leir reviewapproval

• The air c,ndilInniit unit u•as added ott he rootoltlic garagc ‘viLLioul die required design
rev en appr!.va

• ho je:ael:ed -•••c ‘j• :nicrFe toajioxi n’riy: :-ard

• it ijI.icl-e: sr.ai: ?clace ‘cxl: was acoec L: *e re_:j:rI rrrrI. :n- ar:aonov:
r1;1J,e tee j.red a di:e

• . it cei.c nj no :.le nc_n erw:r,sI:ro aro caR-ui

ic ;e:jred irene,

• re woe:. sora ‘lou Cr Ca zic< -ri.:- he reql:jec :nion-:-r serbac
• The pain Inn arc ac ci;TZCOr ire laoooror:ae.: -. r:a ic ien., sc±acks
• :)eEr.s. co: :rI;::;.i:l ri::ar::•.S. .a :rai .zir re ,e’:i: s:erred trier—api _ru-rE.:r

• Thr<j—eje sl-e,E ja 1,r real of r:ir A erora re ira. - tic
• ‘liscol.a:Ka:isi:::i:c ire ki:i i,,ed i-: c.Nao ii ri B

ire u-I t(red wic jrcce rid e9eoil into rear

• ::e:rc.:is :r —.rca— - :rii2c-I, nas Ott wr—_i__r K 4C 5_urerhack it

a ::o:tI i)re.}-Nj:il.-i% ii pr:)ta ,‘P[:rnri: Co :oiissioi Iestt.rr i.5_d.

;\j’-4ir’ .).r_rt.. Ii. crienie .ed...izo :re.!.c To cti:Niian sizd ruic 0 Uc rren,ed
it ?ai;ijr ( cirl:z:s5:c;: i_ha net is,r_t r:l_ H: re.,.

2 4-I $ S.riia Rrhtirii Caur:v Grarj Jun



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

fluilding Violations
• 1 lie re is [sic] no permits on record ] br the harheque i rd atid eec r r cal a pp1 ea,icc S I -vic• I

for the outdoor cooking area
• A door has been added to the carpon without Lie rcquLucd percilir %iLiiin lw Iront ‘ilteri[.Fr

seriueks
• RenioIeI vss done to create a fourth bcdroocn jihout [‘U’ Iii no 1<1111 it

• there is rio xrrnhLt on record lbr the attached patio cover a the rear or rlje loLba

• lie qa,rx !Ie ide urIJ,e LLaace were eu!Istrtictc.1 wLl[lotLt ti’.c rceui’ed per’vtL

• Te :TeI-. in he re:.tr :3:Ee Dxxiv wtjc Lu; ‘viri.j! it ..e.a:_j oen:i

• lEe uas ccc_,:rtjra was Er:: il_;ri Jtr7i’
• ic hjm--:r y.Lr*__ a— ccrs1r:cTe wil:aul pcrx.Is
• Tcrc Ore k rerrrs cc —e Fr.: Ira cc’:icric ::. I: • ne :er Lirhc.1 patio caer

• ha pa’ rL i± rEh:i F neh .irienerE v.:s cej:sri;a ad .vstoii i
• leT9_t:.- for Inc wasner cncr ::,ckjr’ :i

• The k:ci:en las aCt rC:n:dCIad az3 ei:Utred :0 :w ; art tie aInl:iv ream ic
lov.r ante I I fleerr1•rarier Krr.J it - i a ,e\’ r:v ric.Jed aa,c ho
wn sner C V01 :SxUD S ‘voro :ninad I rim iie J tci c—i x—ea Ic tt, tra’ -‘ la::r_drv s
;as also ad rca to nc garage Al ‘.. or a> cone wit ‘10111 Ui e req a ‘cu pci i,i is

• T]wre is no pefiul]L on record forthe air coirditioiIiiI2 unit on lie ‘dc ul ilw divellwg
• T:e side rane cover was 7000:. wirn.: tha reqt.:rec re:r,.
• Pa kixicr was an,3alcd ar.jera re-ri. i,;_& i:: 2*) sL[’::<’—xxxxx.

pcr:nT v Ess_ic. hu: :w’er ;:,ed I: arerri na( :,;i:C:K:i s:ad 1a added
am:a_iJ::::ia —mr -is cEruge .vas :,a:ox:’.r.cc:od a re,:tc rea.
d—

• ha a:rxhe. cnn —n_rue ra(-T—- ‘‘a, addeci ‘.it,:i;: i:C rcqii:rc0 :arrll: .‘,r .i:rkcI-eu
srraeiLrc rcrr-eJ :_:drg r-rtt

• There is a - rrcrrc :.r :l:c -c.,— a:..c red ruOt, a
• an a.r c(rn’ nrc c-i,: s-dec i- mae a—.rfrf:nc Snitico Ark t.: :1.c re_I:rrJ [,1I.

• be iee.oarvx wrs acoc-iw In oil :, crc. .i; red perr I: c-ki aesIg:: civ
appruial. Also. the ofleilia] plans for the duple’ Iii’c carptoi where ihe exisTir,
aIage aiaehocl TO tJ’ni XXX> is Il!c-aLcd The enclosure tftj,e rarpon itqtiircd a
bu ‘cling penn I a]i d de si gil review app ]•O v

• The trellis covers and deck wore addcd witbotil he req i iired permits

• •l•] ic s H c> at was adc ed in 01 e tip stairs bathroom will] otil bc a C’ Ui rcJ pen ii

• 4 building permit is required for the side attached pali ire] lix
• lhcrc is rio record olapennil. ft,r the bar siath intlir gucsl L’cdroo,r,. Funher. Zoning

a] lows onl v a jive i t long counter
• The building permit for the deck (BLI)2000-XXX XX) icus issued in 2000 but expired ii

1002
• ‘lie sink ant) eleetheal outlet were added to the outdoor cou,ilcr wi ihilul Ihe required

peimit

2014—15 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 13



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

• •ihe viewing deck was added without the required building permit
• Ilie patio cover was added without the required pennil
• 1 hcre is no permit on record w he al we at the rear of the dwelling. •rlais area is not

habitable space.
• Pte wall between Iwo o [the bedrooms was removed to create one master bedroom. This

work was done Wi lb UI he req at ted petmit
• The basement has been converted to habitable space wilh bedroom and lUll hathi-oorn

without building permits
• A half bath was added to one ii (he bedrooms without building pernuts
• here are no penlilts oil me for the washer and dryer iii the storage area ol the basement
• There ate no permits on file for the conversion of (lie carport in a garage by (he addition

of a garage door
• ‘lie trash end ox ure was buth without permits
• The half bathroom in the garage was added without the reqait-ed peimi

14 2014-15 Santa Barbara Counts- Grand Jut-v



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

APPENDIX B

Planning Technician XI Job Qualifications, ca 2005:

Knowledge of:
• Basic principles aTrd concepts cd urban planninc.
• Basic e(rnipuLer functions.

• Basic report writing, research methods and data corrpikrtion.
• Basic principles and techniques cC inspection.
• Modern Eflce methods, practices, proccduros arid computer equipment.

• Databases such as Crystal. Access. Execi.
• Pertinent laws, ccrdes rrrdinarices. and regulations related to planning actiVities.
• Principles and concepts of urban plarming.
• Penal codc arrest and seizure procedure.
• Methods and techniques of conflict resolution.
• Complex principles and techniques of inspecliorr.

Ability to:
• L coin to understarr d and in teipiet laws jim] cr1 ying general plans zo ii rig, and applicable

cnvirormrcntal laws arid re grLl ati )n 5.

• learn to inlerprel. planning and zcning programs to the general public.
• Learn to enforce proper zoning requirements.
• Learn to work ‘-i fr diver-xe c u] tural and soc io—econoinic groups.
• ( jiipi Ic technical and statistical inforrnat ion arid prepare basic repor s.
• Rcad arid i nterprel nil appi ng and s tirve y late, site plans, zoning codes Icgal dc.seri ph ons

and related in innaIi rn

• F.stahlisth and ‘maintain databases suet, as Cryslal Access, Excel.
• Understand and carry out oral an LI mTitten directions.
• C nninltrni cate clearly and concis ci y, both oral I yand in writ’ rig.
• Establish and main lain cooperative work rig relationships with those contacted in he

course of work.

• Maintain physical condition approprialc to the perft,nnance of assiaied duties and
responsibilities which may intel ude Ihe Ihllowing:
-- Sitting and standing hrr cx tended periods oftime
-- Operating equipmenl.

• Maintain effective audio-visual dixc,iriiinalir,n and perception nccdcd for:
—- Making observations

Conrnrunicating with others

-- Reading antI Trting
-- Operating related equipment

2014-15 Santa Barbara County Grand Juiy 15



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

• Intcg,rct and en Li-ce applicable City. Stkite, and Federal codes, ordinances, and
regulation related In inning, planning. aud enviromnental laws.

• Rn ha-ce pioper ZOnilw requironietits.
• Foster and usc teeliniq Lies O[ con lii c resolution while working cooperatively with those

contacted in the course ofwork,
• Eticetively and conipetenIy pre.sent presentations to Planning Commission,

Experience and Training Guidelines
• Au y combination of experience and train i rig that W( I til d likely provide the required

knowledge and abilities is qualifring, A typical way to obtain lie knowledge and abilities
would be:

Experience:
• A nilninitiin oF two years of plaiming or rolated expedenoc is typically reLliured
• Training: Lquivnlent to the complelion al the twelfth grade supplemented by eollegc

fevel course work in pl art ni ng, ge( i graph y h LiSi lies S at] ministration or rd ate.d field.

16 2014-15 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA ZONING INFORMATION REPORTS

Appendix C

Violations Called Out for One Property: 1997 — 2014 with No New
Construction, Additions or Demolition Performed

1997 violations
Zi,n i ‘ig Violation: A portion of the carport encroaches into the required intel-icr yard setback.

Building VioIatios:
I. The hot tub/spa and deck were constructed without the required permits.
2. 1hc cat-port and attached trellis were consti-ucted without the reqithed permits.
3 Whore there s a poe1 )r In ‘dy 0 water over 18 inches. gates opening through fence or

wa]l enclosures sba]l he equipped with a self—closing and self-latching dc’-ice

2000 Violations — Nonc notcd

2002 violations
Bnilding Vie In lion: (1 ates leading to pool area must he self—closing and self—I ateh in g.

2011 Violations
Building Violatio”s Petmirs also caot be located for the harheq no, sink and electrical
applicances [sic] for the outdoor cocking area. (Note, this inspector indicated “nc.)ne Fhr
Zoning Ordinance or Building Code violaticttsj

2014 Violations:
Building Violations

- There are no pe,mits on record for the barbeque, sink and eIeetical applieances [sic] [or
the outdoor cooking area,

2. A door has Iwon added to the caqn rI i thu ut the required permit (within the front and
uteri or setbacks) -

2014-15 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 17



 

     Please consider the environment before printing this letter. 

 
August 4, 2015 
 
 
The Honorable Arthur Garcia 
Santa Maria Juvenile Court 
4263 California Blvd. 
Santa Maria, CA 93455 
 
Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 
1100 Anacapa Street 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 
 
Honorable Judge Garcia and Grand Jury Foreperson: 

This letter is in response to the 2014-2015 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury’s Report on the 
City of Santa Barbara’s Zoning Information Reports (ZIRs). This response is provided pursuant 
to the requirements of State Penal Code Section 933 and 933.05. 

The 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report was received by the City on May 11, 2015 and includes ten 
(10) Findings and eleven (11) Recommendations.  The Findings and Recommendations relate to 
the necessity of ZIRs, ZIR preparation procedures, overall cost of the ZIR process, the reliability 
of ZIRs, ability to appeal the findings of a ZIR, and the City’s residential parking requirements.  
The City of Santa Barbara appreciates the work that the 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 Grand Juries 
put into this Report. 

The City of Santa Barbara City Council is aware of the issues surrounding the ZIR program.  
Over the last several years, the City has been working with the Santa Barbara Association of 
Realtors to improve the ZIR process in terms of timeliness, consistency, reliability, 
understandability, problem solving mechanisms, and violation identification.  Improvements 
have been made including making ZIRs optional for condominiums, reducing the time between 
ZIR application submittal and the release of the final ZIR, reducing the cost for ZIRs for larger 
multi-unit complexes, emailing completed ZIRs to the applicant, and accepting ZIR applications 
by fax.  Those changes have been welcomed by the real estate community.  

More recently, after public hearings before the City Council and City Planning Commission in 
2013, a ZIR Working Group was formed in January 2014 to address the issues and clarify and 
streamline the ZIR process.  The ZIR Working Group was composed of representatives from the 
Santa Barbara Association of Realtors, active realtors in the community, members of the City 
Planning Commission, and City staff.  The ZIR Working Group met over a ten month period and 
developed a number of recommended improvements to the ZIR preparation process.  The 
recommendations of the ZIR Working Group, which were collaboratively developed and agreed 
upon, include:  

• Revisions to the ZIR template 

ATTACHMENT 2



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 2 of 13 
 

• Categorization of violations 
• Clarification of the ZIR appeal period  
• Deferral of violation abatement deadlines in certain situations 
• Proposed establishment of a Minor Zoning Exception process, and  
• Creation of new public handouts.   
 

In November 2014, the City Planning Commission reviewed and concurred with the 
recommendations of the ZIR Working Group.  The Planning Commission further recommended 
that City Council initiate an ordinance amendment to establish a Minor Zoning Exception 
process to give City staff the authority to grant relief from minor zoning regulations through the 
ZIR process, and direct staff to implement other changes recommended by the ZIR Working 
Group.  In February 2015, the City Council held a public hearing and initiated an amendment to 
the Zoning Ordinance to establish the Minor Zoning Exception process and directed City staff to 
work on the ZIR process improvements recommended by the ZIR Working Group (Attachment).   

The following ZIR Working Group recommendations have been implemented to date: 

• Categorization of “major” and “minor” violations for the purposes of determining which 
violations are referred for immediate enforcement 

• Delayed enforcement of violations in certain circumstances 
• Retention of inspection photographs long-term 

Staff is currently in the implementation phase of the following ZIR process improvements and 
anticipates completion within the next six months: 

• Revising the ZIR template 
• Establishing a ZIR procedures manual 
• Establishing a Minor Zoning Exception process 
• Creating a ZIR inspection checklist 
• Creating a frequently asked ZIR question handout 
• Creating a handout explaining how to abate violations 
• Establishing a public outreach/information program 

Many of the Findings and Recommendations contained in the Grand Jury Report cover the same 
issues as those discussed in great detail by the ZIR Working Group.  Therefore, many of the 
City’s responses to the Grand Jury’s recommendations state that they “will not be implemented 
because it is not warranted or is not reasonable.”  With all due respect, this rather abrupt 
response language (in bold below) is not the City’s preferred language, but required by the Penal 
Code.  The City Council recognizes the Findings of the Grand Jury are important; however, in 
many cases, another recommendation or remedy was agreed upon by the ZIR Working Group, 
City Planning Commission, and City Council to address the underlying issue and is in process of 
being implemented.   

With this important background information in mind, responses to the Grand Jury’s Findings and 
Recommendations are provided below. 



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 3 of 13 
 
Finding 1:  While the City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Report, instituted in 1974, has 
served an important purpose, the State now requires many of these safeguards through the Real 
Estate Transfer Disclosure Statement. 

Response to Finding 1:  The City disagrees wholly with this Finding.  
As stated in Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) §28.87.220, the primary purpose of a 
Zoning Information Report (ZIR) is to “provide information to the potential buyer of residential 
property concerning the zoning and permitted use of the property.” While the zoning designation 
of a property is easily obtained, the “permitted use of the property” is often subject to 
interpretation and requires a working knowledge of City ordinances, rules and records. In 
addition, the SBMC requires that a ZIR provide the following information: 

• Street address and parcel number  
• Zoning classification and permitted uses 
• Occupancy and uses permitted as indicated and established by City records 
• Any discretionary or administrative acts of record 
• Any special restrictions in use or development which apply to the property 
• Any known nonconformities or violations of any ordinances or laws 
• The results of a physical inspection for compliance with the Zoning Ordinance and for 

compliance with Chapter 14.46 of the SBMC 
• A statement of whether the real property has had a Sewer Lateral Inspection Report 

prepared within five years prior to the ZIR 

The SBMC does not require that a ZIR include a review of the property’s compliance with the 
Building Codes nor confirm the location of property lines.  

Most of the above items are not included in the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure Statement.  
Although State-mandated disclosure statements encourage potential buyers to conduct their own 
investigations of the property, no City record check is required of either the seller or buyer as 
part of those disclosures.  Furthermore, the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure Statement only 
requires a property owner to state if they are “aware of” any additions, alterations, or repairs that 
may have been made without the necessary permits or may not be in compliance with local 
codes.  Many members of the public are unaware of the extent of improvements that require a 
permit and are not familiar with how to research the permit history, permitted uses, legality of 
structures or if the property contains legal nonconforming improvements.  A ZIR is necessary to 
properly inform buyers of the property’s status in terms of City records.  Without a ZIR, a buyer 
does not have the City’s perspective regarding the permitted uses of the property, zoning, 
nonconformities, or unpermitted construction.  Staff’s analysis of the facts based on a physical 
inspection of the property and historical record in the street and planning files is important, and 
these are included in ZIRs. 

In addition to providing important information to the seller and buyer, ZIRs provide an important 
community benefit.   ZIRs help maintain and protect neighborhoods and the City’s housing stock 
by ensuring new construction meets codified health, safety and general welfare requirements.  
City staff has heard from residents that they appreciate ZIRs because they know the City will 



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 4 of 13 
 
inspect properties when they are sold.  Many neighbors are reluctant to report a potential 
violation on their neighbor’s property for fear of retaliation.   

ZIRs also protect the community by providing a strong incentive for property owners to seek 
necessary City approvals and permits before making improvements.  Most property owners are 
aware that ZIRs are required at the time of sale of the property and that improvements made on 
the property without the proper permits will be identified at that time.  The elimination of the 
requirement for ZIRs could result in fewer property owners obtaining the proper City approvals 
or permits which may lead to an increase in illegal dwelling units, substandard construction, and 
need for future enforcement.  For these reasons the City’s adopted Housing Element supports the 
continuation of the ZIR program. 

Recommendation 1: That the City of Santa Barbara declare Zoning Information Reports 
voluntary, and used for informational purposes only. 

Response to Recommendation 1: The Recommendation will not be implemented because 
it is not warranted or is not reasonable.   
This policy decision has been discussed at several recent public hearings before the City’s 
Planning Commission (Sept. and Oct. 2013, Nov. 2014) and City Council (Aug. 2013 and Feb. 
2015).   At the conclusion of the most recent City Council hearing in February 2015, the City 
Council continued to support maintaining the mandatory requirement for ZIRs and directed staff 
to implement the recommendations of the ZIR Working Group and Planning Commission for 
improvements to the ZIR preparation process.   

Eliminating the requirement for a ZIR or only using the ZIR for informational purposes will not 
negate the fact that a violation exists on a property; it will only potentially delay action to abate 
the violation.  The City Council understood this in February and also recognized that the ZIR is 
an important mechanism to enforce relevant City ordinances and preserve the quality of the 
City’s housing stock and neighborhoods. 

It is important to note that a ZIR disclosure does not create the violation(s). Construction without 
required City approval or permit is a violation whether or not it is identified in a ZIR, and will 
continue to be required to be abated at the time the next building permit is sought or when a 
complaint is received.  If this recommendation were implemented, in many cases, potential 
violations would not come to light for months or even years after the sale has closed.  By that 
time it could be extremely challenging for the”new” property owner to hold the previous 
property owner responsible and obtain an appropriate remedy for the violation(s). Although the 
implementation of this recommendation might simplify the real estate transaction, it could lead 
to more property owners being upset and wishing they knew about the violations when they 
bought the property.  Identifying zoning and building violations at the time of sale of a 
residential property gives the seller and buyer the same information from the City on the status of 
the property and the opportunity to decide how to resolve the violations.  City staff has received 
few complaints regarding the ZIR process from prospective buyers of a property or neighbors.  It 
is important to consider the many perspectives on the value of ZIRs and the purpose they serve 
to protect the community at large.  



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 5 of 13 
 
Finding 2:  The practice of the City of Santa Barbara Community Development Department is 
that if information cannot be located by the Planning Technician II inspector, it is assumed it 
never existed and that owners must produce proof of its existence, or face violations. 

Response to Finding 2:  The City partially agrees with this Finding.  
The ZIR inspector (Grand Jury utilizes the term “Planning Technician II inspector”) uses many 
resources during the preparation of a ZIR.  In addition to a site visit, the primary information 
sources include the street and planning files and the City’s archive plans. If information in City 
files or archive plans does not include certain improvements observed during the site inspection, 
the ZIR inspector performs additional research.  This research involves a number of sources 
including: Sanborn Maps, consultation and/or additional site inspection with City building 
inspectors, historic survey documentation, and aerial photographs. Staff also consults with the 
property owner or real estate agent to discuss the improvement and requests any information 
which could help establish when the improvement in question first appeared on the site.  Staff 
sometimes asks the property owner to obtain the County Assessor’s Residential Building Record 
which can help establish when the improvement in question first appeared on the property.  
Records that establish when an improvement was constructed help staff determine what City 
Codes were in effect at the time, and what standards and permits were necessary.  Based on this 
research, staff uses its best judgment to resolve issues and, in many cases, decides to recognize 
an improvement as being legal when there is some credible evidence to support such a 
conclusion.  However, if information in the record clearly indicates that an improvement is in 
violation of the Zoning Ordinance or lacks the necessary building permit, staff must note it as a 
violation. 

If there are no original permits or original archive plans to reference, a note is added to the ZIR 
that states: “There are no original building permits or plans on file for the dwelling. Therefore, 
no verification can be made as to the number and legality of the existing configuration of 
rooms.” In these cases, any other obvious violations may be noted in the ZIR, evidenced by the 
date of construction, location of improvement (in relation to a known improvement), or apparent 
health or safety violations.  

The ZIR Working Group discussed this issue at length.  The discussion focused on gaining an 
understanding of all the information sources utilized by City staff during the preparation of a 
ZIR.  The ZIR Working Group recommended a new section be added to the ZIR template that 
informs the property owner/potential buyer of the information sources utilized in reaching the 
conclusions contained in the ZIR.  This new section has been added to the revised ZIR template 
which will be implemented in the near future.    

Recommendation 2: That the City of Santa Barbara Community Development Department 
institute a policy that if staff cannot prove that the property was altered during the current 
ownership, the City presumes the alteration previously existed. 

Response to Recommendation 2:  This Recommendation will not be implemented because it 
is not warranted or is not reasonable.    



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 6 of 13 
 
The implementation of this Recommendation would neither be in compliance with the 
requirements of City’s Zoning Ordinance nor further the purposes of a ZIR.  In addition to basic 
information regarding the property such as street address, assessor parcel number, zone 
classification, and permitted uses of the property, SBMC Section 28.87.220.D requires “any 
known nonconformities or violations of any ordinances or law” to be included in the ZIR.  This 
section of the Code states that “any” nonconformity or violation should be noted, not just ones 
that occurred during the current ownership.   

Furthermore, given that the City is responsible for the regulation and protection of the general 
health, safety and welfare of the community, staff cannot ignore its responsibility to identify that 
which might cause someone harm or affect their or their neighbors’ welfare. Additionally, 
Section 1272 of the Evidence Code provides that because it is the City’s regular course of 
business to preserve the record of the City, the absence of a record is a trustworthy indication 
that the act or event did not occur, or that the condition did not exist. For these reasons, the City 
has a responsibility to disclose our records as they exist, and note any discrepancies therein. 

This recommendation operates on the assumption that if the City presumes that the alteration 
existed when the current owner took ownership then the violation is avoided. However, if an 
alteration was constructed without permits at a time when permits were required, it does not 
matter who owns the property. The violation exists whether or not it was actually caused by the 
current owner. 

Furthermore, implicit in this recommendation is the belief that if the violation was missed by the 
inspector for the prior ZIR, or was not abated during the ownership of the prior owner, the proper 
remedy for the current owner who is attempting to sell the property is for the City to “legalize” 
or ignore the existence of the violation.  However, this is very concerning to the City because the 
underlying illegality of the violation and the remedy would remain unaddressed, and to allow its 
continuation would serve to harm the persons who live at the property or own property adjacent 
to the residence on which the violation is noticed. 

Finding 3:  Homeowners, after having spent many hundreds, often thousands of dollars to 
establish that an improvement was permitted, and that the City was incorrect, still bear the cost 
of the investigation. 

Response to Finding 3:  The City agrees with this Finding. 

Recommendation 3: That if the alleged violations prove to be incorrect, the City of Santa 
Barbara reimburse the homeowner for all costs incurred in the subsequent investigation. 

Response to Recommendation 3:  This Recommendation has been partially implemented.  
City staff encourages property owners to contact staff directly when there is concern regarding a 
noted violation.  Staff works with property owners to gather information that may help establish 
the legal status of the construction in question. In more challenging cases, owners may find the 
help of a hired consultant beneficial to their cause, but that is a personal decision and not one 
mandated by the City.  

 



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 7 of 13 
 
The City conducts inspections and prepares ZIRs in good faith.  It is understood that property 
owners may have a different perspective regarding the legality of the improvements on their 
property.  Even when everyone is acting in good faith, disputes can arise.  In instances when 
alleged violations prove incorrect, a refund of appeal fees paid to the City is now provided.  
However, due to lack of control of the scope and direction of private investigations, it would be 
inappropriate for the City to pay for these additional costs. 

Finding 4:  A City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Report with no violations does not 
guarantee a future report will not show alleged unreported violations by previous owners. 

Response to Finding 4:  The City agrees with this Finding, with qualifications. 
The ZIR Working Group discussed the issue of discrepancies between ZIRs at length, and 
identified recommendations to address them (Attachment). 

City staff acknowledges that there may be instances of discrepancies between the findings of a 
current ZIR and a previous ZIR.  Staff estimates that approximately only two to four ZIRs per 
month (or 4-8 %) have some kind of inconsistency or discrepancy with a previous ZIR.   

When discrepancies occur, they usually fall into one or more of the following categories: 

• The previous ZIR notes the improvement as existing and either does not indicate it is a 
violation or erroneously states that it is “non-conforming” (such as hedges).  

• The previous ZIR notes the improvement as existing and states that it is a violation but was 
not referred to enforcement, or only partial enforcement occurred. 

• The previous ZIR does not mention the improvement as existing and there is no evidence as 
to when the improvement first appeared, yet the owner states the improvement existed at the 
time they purchased the property. 

There are various reasons for alleged discrepancies between ZIRs: 1) the level/quality of staff 
research performed during the preparation of previous ZIRs was less than acceptable in some 
cases; 2) the City record is occasionally unclear or lacking altogether; 3 ) the improvement may 
have been obscured from view by landscaping or an object had been placed over, or in front of, 
the improvement to obscure the view of it from the ZIR inspector, which was later removed; or, 
4) the improvement was, in fact, added after the last ZIR was completed.  

Staff has made improvements over the years to increase the reliability of ZIRs.  Staff currently 
performs more in-depth research and regularly consults the archive plans when preparing a ZIR.  
Staff believes that the increased accuracy of today’s ZIRs have led to many of the discrepancies 
with prior ZIRs. 

Recognizing the need for improvements, staff is also in the process of standardizing procedures 
for preparing ZIRs and identifying violations.  The procedures will give staff clear and consistent 
direction on how to prepare a ZIR, conduct the site inspection, determine what violations are 
identified in the ZIR, and how and what types of violations are referred for enforcement.  
Planning staff has also increased its early collaboration with property owners and Building and 
Safety Division staff when discrepancies arise before the ZIR is finalized.  This increased 
collaboration has proven beneficial. 



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 8 of 13 
 
The City attempts to minimize the impacts of discrepancies between ZIRs.  Staff currently 
expedites and simplifies the discretionary review process as much as possible and waives the 
Planning fees in cases of discrepancies between ZIRs.  Planning staff also involves Building and 
Safety Division staff earlier in the process to identify information that may be necessary for the 
building permit. 

The ZIR Working Group discussed several changes to the ZIR process to address discrepancies.  
These changes include establishing a Minor Zoning Exception process, which requires a Zoning 
Ordinance amendment, and to only refer violations for enforcement that involve the creation of 
an illegal dwelling unit or the physical loss of parking.  Violations that involve the creation of 
new floor area or conditioned space would only be referred for enforcement if it appears to create 
an immediate health or safety risk.    

Recommendation 4: That the City of Santa Barbara provide certainty to the buyer by certifying 
each Zoning Information Report as accurate. 

Response to Recommendation 4:  The Recommendation will not be implemented because it 
is not warranted or is not reasonable. 
A ZIR is a good-faith effort at full disclosure to a potential buyer of authorized uses and 
occupancy of a property, including zoning violations and improvements constructed without City 
permits or approvals. At the time each ZIR is prepared, it is completed with a high level of 
confidence that it reflects the City’s current record and understanding regarding improvements 
on the property. Although it is understandably frustrating to sellers and realtors, potential 
discrepancies with a prior ZIR does not invalidate the current ZIR as being the most accurate 
account of the property from the City’s perspective. 

Implicit in this recommendation is the belief that if the violation was missed by the inspector for 
the prior ZIR, or was not abated during the ownership of the prior owner, the proper remedy for 
the current owner who is attempting to sell the property is for the City to “legalize” or ignore the 
existence of the violation.  However, this is very concerning to the City because the underlying 
illegality of the violation and the remedy would remain unaddressed, and to allow its 
continuation would serve to harm the persons who live at the property or own property adjacent 
to the residence on which the violation is noticed. 

Implementation of this Recommendation would require changes to the ZIR preparation process 
and has the potential of extending the time period required to prepare a ZIR.    When staff does 
make an error in a current ZIR, steps are taken to correct it (that process is further discussed in 
Recommendation 5). The ZIR Working Group did consider including a five-day preview period 
during which agents could review an electronic draft of the ZIR before the ZIR becomes final, 
and discuss any differences of opinion or concerns.  While this option could provide additional 
assurance that the final report represents a consensual understanding of the property’s status, it 
would lengthen the overall turnaround time for ZIRs.   

Finding 5:  If a violation reported on a City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Report is 
found to be incorrect, the report is amended but the alleged violation is not necessarily removed 
by the Community Development Department. 



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 9 of 13 
 
Response to Finding 5:  The City disagrees wholly with this Finding. 
If a violation cited in a ZIR is later found to be incorrect, the report is amended or a memo is sent 
to the street file, and any associated enforcement action pertaining to that violation is withdrawn.  

Recommendation 5: If a Zoning Information Report violation is found to be incorrect, that 
violation be removed entirely from the report. 

Response to Recommendation 5:  A portion of this Recommendation is currently part of 
the City’s ZIR preparation process, and part of the Recommendation will not be 
implemented because it is not warranted or is not reasonable. 
If a violation is found to be incorrect prior to the final ZIR being posted on the City’s website, 
reference to the violation is removed from the ZIR and a new ZIR (without the violation) is 
produced.  However, if a violation is found to be incorrect soon after the ZIR is posted on the 
City’s website, an amended ZIR is issued with a note included in the violation section explaining 
why the conclusion was incorrect and indicates that the violation no longer pertains to the 
property.  If several months have passed since the issuance of the ZIR, a memorandum is sent to 
the public street file that explains the new finding and that the violation no longer pertains to the 
property.   

In order to maintain thorough and accurate public records, staff does not modify a ZIR after the 
ZIR has been sent to the street file and posted to the City’s website. Since the ZIR becomes part 
of the public record once it’s posted, staff cannot know if a ZIR has been downloaded and 
distributed to other persons not associated with the sale of the property, and it can cause 
confusion if two different ZIRs are circulating with different dates and conclusions.   For that 
reason, staff appends to previously posted ZIRs, and does not remove them entirely from the 
record. 

Finding 6:  There is no formal appeal process. An “intent to dispute” is not an adequate appeals 
process. 

Response to Finding 6:  The City disagrees wholly with this Finding.  

The ZIR Working Group discussed establishing a more formal appeal process, but concerns were 
expressed regarding the amount of additional time and costs associated with that process and 
agreed that maintaining the existing ten-day appeal period was appropriate.   

Currently, the ZIR form states that an owner or agent has ten days from the receipt date of a ZIR 
to appeal its findings, and no fee is charged.  In order to appeal the findings of the ZIR, a written 
letter stating the grounds for the appeal and any supporting documentation regarding the disputed 
finding(s) of the ZIR must be submitted.  The owner or agent first works with the inspector that 
prepared the ZIR to resolve the appeal issues. The ZIR inspector is most familiar with the 
property as they recently inspected it for the ZIR.  If an owner or agent is not satisfied with the 
determination of the ZIR inspector, the appeal is elevated to the Supervisor or City Planner level 
for further review.   



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 10 of 13 
 
Since there is no set appeal period established in the Municipal Code, a property owner may 
appeal the findings of the ZIR after the ten-day period specified on the ZIR form.  However, 
because additional staff time is necessary to recall the records and basis for the findings and, in 
some cases, a follow-up site visit is warranted, staff’s time to research an appeal after the ten-day 
period is subject to the hourly staff fee as established by the City Council. 

Recommendation 6a:  That the City of Santa Barbara establish an appeals process that 
requires an outside mediator. 

City Response to Recommendation 6a: The City will not be implementing this 
recommendation because it is not warranted or is not reasonable.   
In many cases it is appropriate and very helpful to turn to a professional mediator to help resolve 
disputes, with a typical goal of each party to compromise.  However, in cases where a building or 
zoning code has been clearly violated, it would be inappropriate for the City to agree to the 
compromise of public health, safety and/or welfare. If a property owner disagrees with a factual 
conclusion made in a ZIR, the property owner may ask a court to review the basis on which the 
City’s conclusion rests.  

Recommendation 6b:  That the Zoning Information Report include a prominently stated and 
documented appeal process. 

City Response to Recommendation 6b:  This Recommendation has been implemented as it 
was a recommendation of the ZIR Working Group. 
The revised ZIR template contains a new Section titled “Expiration Date, Amendments to this 
ZIR, and Appeals.”  This Section explains the process to request an amendment to the ZIR and 
how a property owner or agent can appeal the ZIR findings.  Staff anticipates beginning using 
the new ZIR template within the next month. 

Finding 7:  The City Zoning Information Report Planning Technician II inspectors do not 
typically research the property records prior to the site visit. 

City Response to Finding 7:  The City disagrees wholly with this Finding. 
ZIR inspectors are trained to review the street and planning files prior to the site inspection. In 
some cases, archive plans are also reviewed prior to the inspection. The inspector also prepares a 
ZIR worksheet that contains basic property information (zoning, non-conforming aspects of the 
property, number of parking spaces, etc.), the property description from the last ZIR (if 
applicable), and previous zoning/building violations as a frame of reference for beginning the 
inspection.  Any discrepancies in the record or missing information are noted to help inform the 
inspector about certain areas of the property that may warrant additional attention. The ZIR 
inspector brings the street file and ZIR worksheet with them to the site inspection for reference 
on site.  Given this Finding of the Grand Jury and statements by the real estate community in 
recent public hearings, the ZIR inspectors have been reminded of this requirement. 



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 11 of 13 
 
Recommendation 7: The Planning Technician II inspector review all relevant files prior to a 
site visit. 

City Response to Recommendation 7:  This Recommendation has been implemented as it is 
a current requirement of the ZIR inspector. 

This is a current requirement and will be included in the written staff procedures currently under 
development.   

Finding 8:  The basic cost of a City of Santa Barbara Zoning Information Report is $465.00, the 
highest in the State.  Other municipalities charge considerably less. 

Response to Finding 8:  The City disagrees partially with this Finding.  
Any comparison of fees should take into consideration the level of service provided and whether 
or not the jurisdiction seeks to recover the full cost of providing the service. City staff researched 
many other municipalities to determine what they require upon the sale of residential property.  
There is a large variation in the report types and the type of information provided.  Many 
municipalities that produce a “zoning report” do not perform site inspections.  Some 
municipalities provide a computer printout of zoning requirements and known nonconformancies 
or violations based on information contained in their street file.  Other municipalities provide 
information from their files and do a visual inspection of the exterior of the property and list any 
obvious violations.  Some municipalities provide a limited interior/exterior inspection but only 
focus on certain health and safety or building code violations.  Based on staff research, the costs 
of these varied services and the resultant reports range from $30.00 to $1,016.00 per unit.  One 
jurisdiction’s fee was based on the size of the residential unit.  For residences less than 5,000 
square feet the fee is $385.00. For residences between 5,000 and 10,000 square feet the fee is 
$591.00 and the fee for residences over 10,000 square feet is $1,016.00.  Due to the larger scope 
of the City’s ZIRs and the fact that City Council has deemed the service to be full-cost recovery, 
the cost of a ZIR in the City does exceed that of many other jurisdictions.  

Recommendation 8:  The price for a Zoning Information Report should be consistent with other 
municipalities. 

Response to Recommendation 8:  This Recommendation will not be implemented because it 
is not warranted or is not reasonable.  
This issue has been discussed before the City Council in several recent public hearings (Aug. 
2013 and Feb. 2015).  Zoning Information Reports are one of a few services provided by the 
Planning Division that the City Council has designated as being full cost recovery.  The City 
Council has determined that it is not appropriate for public funds to subsidize private real estate 
transactions.  If the cost of a ZIR were reduced below that which it costs the City to provide the 
service, the level of service would either have to be reduced accordingly or the funds would have 
to be absorbed by another program in the Planning Division.  The cost of a ZIR has not increased 
since Fiscal Year 2011, and was actually reduced in FY2014 for larger multi-unit properties.   



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 12 of 13 
 
Finding 9:  The requirement that a single-family residence maintain a covered, unobstructed, 20 
foot by 20 foot parking space is overly restrictive. 

Response to Finding 9:  The City disagrees wholly with this Finding. 
SBMC §28.90.045, Parking Design Standards, requires all parking facilities be designed and 
constructed pursuant to the current City Standards for Parking Design.  The requirement for the 
minimum 20 foot by 20 foot interior clear space within a garage is contained in the City 
Standards for Parking Design, which was established in 1982.  This minimum interior 
dimension is a standard requirement of many jurisdictions, both within California and 
nationwide. 

Recommendation 9: That the City rewrite this parking ordinance requirement in a more 
flexible manner while keeping on-street parking under control. 

Response to Recommendation 9:  This Recommendation will not be implemented because it 
is not warranted or is not reasonable.  
SBMC §28.90.045.B, Parking Design Standards - Variation, allows a property owner to apply 
for a waiver from the requirement for any of the design standards contained in the City Standards 
for Parking Design, including the minimum interior dimension of a garage. This provides 
flexibility on a case-by-case basis, as warranted. The Public Works Department reviews parking 
design waiver requests. 

Finding 10:  There is no training manual for staff to conduct consistent Zoning Information 
Report inspections and reports. 

City Response to Finding 10:  The City agrees with this Finding.  
Staff agrees that there is currently no written training manual for preparing ZIRs.  New ZIR 
inspectors are trained by staff currently preparing ZIRs. 

Recommendation 10:  That the City of Santa Barbara write a detailed training manual defining 
the research policies, inspections, and procedures. 

City Response to Recommendation 10:  This Recommendation has been implemented as it 
was a recommendation of the ZIR Working Group. 
The ZIR Working Group recommended that staff prepare written procedures for the preparation 
of ZIRs, including relevant information sources, site inspection procedures, violation 
identification and enforcement referral, appeal process, and documentation.  The ZIR Working 
Group also recommended that the scope and content of the ZIR be reviewed to only include 
information that is relevant, important, and consistent with the Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
The Planning Commission and City Council concurred with this recommendation.  City staff is 
in the process of developing the written procedures.   The written procedures will help with 
consistency and give clear guidance to staff on preparing ZIRs. 



Judge Garcia & Grand Jury Foreman 
Re: 2014-2015 Grand Jury Report on the City of Santa Barbara’s ZIR Program 
August 4, 2015 
Page 13 of 13 
 
Should the Grand Jury have and questions regarding the City’s response or wish to follow up 
with the City, please contact me, City Administrator Paul Casey or City Attorney Ariel Calonne. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Helene Schneider, 
Mayor 
 
 
Attachment: February 10, 2015 City Council Agenda Report 
 
 
Cc: City Councilmembers 
 Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 Ariel Calonne, City Attorney 
 George Buell, Community Development Director 
 Renee Brooke, City Planner 
 Susan Reardon, Senior Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  15 
 

File Code No.  230.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Capital Improvement Projects:  Annual Report For Fiscal Year 2015 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council receive the City’s Capital Improvement Projects Fourth Quarter and Annual 
Report for Fiscal Year 2015. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
A presentation will be made to Council summarizing the progress made on City capital 
improvement projects for the past fiscal year, which includes $27 million in completed 
construction projects. The value of projects with construction in progress totals 
$45,500,646, and the value of projects in the design phase totals $112,166,405. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
CONSTRUCTION HIGHLIGHTS – COMPLETED PROJECTS 
 
Six projects were completed in the fourth quarter of Fiscal Year 2015, from April through 
June 2015. Attachment 1 displays a chart that shows the completed capital projects for 
the fourth quarter. Attachments 2 and 3 display the completed capital projects by fund 
for Fiscal Year 2015. The following describes the highlights of three completed 
construction projects: 
 

• Lower Sycamore Creek Channel Widening and Punta Gorda Street Bridge 
Replacement ($3,846,553) – The completed project consisted of widening Lower 
Sycamore Creek, removing and replacing the Punta Gorda Street Bridge. The work 
consisted of constructing an earthen channel and other drainage facilities; removing 
and replacing a concrete bridge and roadway approaches, relocating water, sewer, 
electric, communication, and gas facilities; placing riparian bank protection and 
planting; and installing irrigation systems. 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects:  Annual Report For Fiscal Year 2015 
August 4, 2015 
Page 2 

 

• Zone 1 Slurry Seal ($1,029,688) – The work consisted of re-sealing full roadways 
on various roads throughout the City which encompass streets mainly in Zone 1 
(Eastside and Lower Riviera). The project also included work at various downtown 
and Waterfront parking lots. 

 
• Alameda Park Well Relocation Well Drilling and Construction ($1,308,148) – The 

completed project consisted of drilling and constructing of a fully functional 
municipal water production well. The work included demolition of the City’s existing 
Alameda Park Well, construction of a temporary sound wall, staging, mobilization, 
and drilling the new well. 

 
CONSTRUCTION HIGHLIGHTS – IN PROGRESS 
 
In addition, 18 projects are currently under construction, with an approximate 
construction contract value of $45,500,646 (Attachment 4).  The Interactive Map of 
Design and Construction Projects can be viewed at the following link: 
www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/depts/pw/engineering/major_projects. The following are 
highlights of construction projects in progress: 
 
Public Works Bridges: 

• Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge at Mission Creek ($13,989,151) – In July, the 
contractor completed the mountain side bridge demolition and started 
construction of the new bridge and upstream creek walls. In addition, work will 
continue this summer on the temporary pedestrian bridge on the beach side of 
the project. The project is scheduled to be complete by the end of 2016. 

 
• Cota Street Bridge at Mission Creek ($4,956,146) – The project is moving along 

well, and the existing bridge has been completely removed and the rubble 
cleared away. The project is on track to be complete by the end of 2015. 

 
• Mason Street Bridge at Mission Creek ($7,280,709) – Significant progress has 

been made to date as the contractor has completed installation of the east 
channel walls and bridge abutment. The creek channel has been widened, and 
the flow is now being routed in front of the new walls. Construction of the new 
west channel walls and bridge abutment is underway. The project is on schedule 
to be completed early in the second half of 2016. 

 
Public Works Facilities: 

• Laguna Lot Permeable Paver Project ($1,200,231) – This project will replace two 
existing City-owned parking lots with permeable pavers. In June 2015, the 
contract for construction was awarded, and construction began in July. The 
project is scheduled to be complete in December 2015. 

 
Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Santa Barbara: 
Lower West Downtown Lighting Improvement Project, Phase 2 ($463,558) – The first 
phase of this project was completed in 2012. The second phase includes the 100-400 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/depts/pw/engineering/major_projects.asp


Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects:  Annual Report For Fiscal Year 2015 
August 4, 2015 
Page 3 

 

blocks of West Cota Street, the 500 and 600 blocks of Castillo, Bath and De La Vina 
Streets; Dibblee Avenue, and Bradbury Avenue. The work consists of installing 77 
street lights, as well as installing underground conduits, electrical circuits, and related 
components. The light fixtures are City Standard fluted concrete poles with Malaga 
Green dome light fixtures. The project is scheduled to be complete in August 2015. 
 
Public Works Wastewater: 

• Digester Cleaning Project ($870,895) – Cleaning of Digester Number Two was 
successfully completed in May 2015. The cleaning for Digester Number One is 
scheduled to begin in September 2015. 

 
Public Works Water: 

• Alameda Park Well Replacement Project ($1,275,580) – This project consisted of 
the installation of piping and electrical conduit for the relocated Alameda Park 
Well and restoration of the site post construction. The work included drilling of a 
new well, abandonment of the existing well, tree replacement, along with 
landscaping and restoration of all construction impacted areas. The work was 
completed in July and is anticipated to go online early fall 2015. 

 
PROJECTS IN DEVELOPMENT 
 
In addition to the projects in construction, there are currently 41 projects in design, with 
an estimated total project cost of $112,166,405 (see Attachment 4). At this time, the 
Desalination Project is not included. 
 
Projects are scheduled to be funded over several years, as generally shown in the 
City’s Six-Year Capital Improvement Program Report. These projects rely on 
guaranteed or anticipated funding and grants. 
 
The following are design project highlights. 
 
Public Works Bridge Program: 
The City of Santa Barbara currently has nine active bridge projects. Three of these 
projects (Cabrillo, Mason, Cota) are currently in the construction phase. The total value 
of these three projects, including right of way expenses, is approximately $52.5 million. 
The remaining six projects are currently in design. The projects in design include four 
bridge replacements (Gutierrez, De la Guerra, Anapamu, and Quinientos). The 
expected value of these four projects is $24 million. The remaining projects in design 
include the Mission Canyon Road Bridge and a bridge preventative maintenance project 
at various locations. The total value of the nine active bridge projects is approximately 
$80 million.  It is anticipated that the City will be reimbursed for approximately 85 
percent of these expenses. 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects:  Annual Report For Fiscal Year 2015 
August 4, 2015 
Page 4 

 

 

Project Name Estimated 
Project Cost City Funds Scheduled 

Construction Start 
De La Guerra Bridge $6,235,000 $850,000 2017 
Gutierrez Bridge $6,665,750 $900,000 2017 
Anapamu Bridge $5,415,000 $160,000 2017 
Quinientos Bridge $5,622,500 $160,000 2017 
Total $23,938,250 $2,070,000  % City Funds 8.6% 

 
The design phase and environmental studies are ongoing for the De La Guerra, 
Gutierrez, Anapamu, and Quinientos Bridges, with construction scheduled for spring 
2017. 
 
Public Works Pavement Maintenance: 

• Las Positas/Cliff Drive Intersection Improvements ($1,600,000) – The Las Positas 
Road/Cliff Drive Roundabout Project will construct a single-lane roundabout at 
the intersection of Las Positas Road and Cliff Drive in order to reduce congestion 
and queuing during the morning and evening peak hours. Design is currently 
underway, and construction is anticipated to begin in summer/fall 2016. 

 
Public Works Wastewater: 

• El Estero Secondary Process Improvements Project - Final Design and 
Construction ($21,286,298) – The project is currently in final design and will be 
competitively bid this fall. This project will address longstanding operational and 
energy inefficiency issues, and it will replace aging infrastructure. Construction 
will start in early 2016 and last approximately two years. 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
Fiscal Year 2015 ended with approximately $27 million in complete construction, with 
approximately $5.5 million coming from grant funding. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Completed Capital Improvement Projects for Fiscal Year 2015 

2. Completed Capital Improvement Projects Funding Fiscal Year 
2015 – Table 

3. Completed Capital Improvement Projects Funding by 
Category Fiscal Year 2015 – Chart 

4. Capital Projects with Design and Construction in Progress 
 
PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer/TB 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Attachment 1 
 

COMPLETED CAPITAL PROJECTS - FOURTH QUARTER FISCAL YEAR 2015 
 

 

Project Name Design Costs Construction 
Contract 

Construction 
Change Order 

Costs 

Construction 
Management 

Costs 
Total Project 

Costs 

Lower Sycamore Creek 
Channel Widening and 
Punta Gorda Street Bridge 
Replacement 

$576,388 $1,865,965 $661,414 $742,786 $3,846,553 

Moreton Bay Fig Tree 
Post and Chain Boundary $4,657 $72,200 -$5,008 $12,816 $84,665 

El Estero Digester High 
Performance Coating $11,148 $411,000 -$33,000 $43,752 $432,900  

Zone 1 Slurry Seal $66,625 $776,751 -$21,883 $208,195 $1,029,688 

Alameda Park Well 
Relocation Well Drilling 
and Construction 

$157,503 $1,050,255 $0 $100,390 $1,308,148 

CCTV Inspections 
Fiscal Year 2014 $17,573 $205,597 $62,126 $48,420 $333,716 

TOTALS $833,894 $4,381,768  $663,649 $1,156,359 $7,035,670 



COMPLETED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FUNDING 
FISCAL YEAR 2015

Attachment 2

PROJECT TITLE FUNDING

First Quarter Airport Creeks  Downtown 
Parking Parks General Fund  Facilities Other Streets Streets Grants Water Wastewater Waterfront Other Grants

TOTAL 
PROJECT 

COSTS
Zone 6 (Fiscal Year 13) 
Pavement Preparation 
(1)

64,065$        1,059,175$   512,196$      20,950$        1,656,386$         

State Route 192 Utility 
Adjustments 118,852$      118,852$            

1,775,238$         

PROJECT TITLE FUNDING

Second Quarter Airport Creeks  Downtown 
Parking Parks General Fund  Facilities Other Streets Streets Grants Water Wastewater Waterfront Other Grants

PROJECT 
COSTS

School Zone Ped 
Refuge Island (1) 38,358$        152,645$      191,003$            

On Call Sewer Main 
Point Repairs FY 14 285,193$      285,193$            

Reservoir No. 1 Joint 
Seal Repair 236,594$      236,594$            

CDBG 2013-2014 
Sidewalk Access Ramp 
Project (2)

104,041$      98,883$        202,924$            

Water Main 
Rehabilitation FY 13 4,228,704$   4,228,704$         

Sycamore Cyn Rd Bank 
Repair Project 207,342$      207,342$            

Valle Verde Well 
Upgrade 167,317$      167,317$            

5,519,077$         
(2) Community Development Block Grant

FIRST QUARTER

Total First Quarter(1) Local Surface Transportation Program & State Local Partnership Program

SECOND QUARTER

(1) Measure A Total Second Quarter

1



COMPLETED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FUNDING 
FISCAL YEAR 2015

Attachment 2

PROJECT TITLE FUNDING

Third Quarter Airport Creeks  Downtown 
Parking Parks General Fund  Facilities 

 Other
Successor 

Agency 
Streets Streets Grants Water Wastewater Waterfront Other Grants

TOTAL 
PROJECT 

COSTS
Safe Routes To 
School/Cleveland (1) 180,763$      225,000$      405,763$            

911 Call Center 
Temporary Relocation 2,375,625$   2,375,625$         

Pavement Rehabilitation
Runway 15L-33R (2) 268,519$      2,609,507$   2,878,026$         

Marina 1 Replacement  
Phase 5 1,922,041$   1,922,041$         

Wastewater Main 
Rehabilitation FY 14 1,215,760$   1,215,760$         

Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Influent Pumps 
Station Replacement

3,891,192$   3,891,192$         

(1) Safe Routes To School 12,688,407$       
(2) FAA Airport Improvement Grant

PROJECT TITLE FUNDING

Fourth Quarter Airport Creeks  Downtown 
Parking Parks General Fund  Facilities 

 Other
Successor 

Agency 
Streets Streets Grants Water Wastewater Waterfront Other Grants

TOTAL 
PROJECT 

COSTS

Lower Sycamore Creek 
Channel Widening & 
Punta Gorda Street 
Bridge Replacement (1)

1,042,508$   2,804,045$   3,846,553$         

Moreton Bay Fig Tree 
Post & Chain Boundary 84,665$        84,665$             

El Estero Digester High 
Performance Coating 432,900$      432,900$            

Zone 1 Slurry Seal 44,640$        946,557$      38,491$        1,029,688$         

Alameda Park Well 
Relocation-Well Drilling 
and Construction

1,308,148$   1,308,148$         

CCTV Inspections 
Fiscal Year 14 333,716$      333,716$            

(1) CDBG Disaster Recovery Program 7,035,670$         

Airport Creeks  Downtown
 Parking Parks  General 

Fund  Facilities 
 Other/

Successor 
Agency 

Streets Streets Grants Water Wastewater Waterfront Other Grants

GRAND TOTAL 268,519$    44,640$      64,065$      2,375,625$ 3,456,067$ 889,841$    6,266,957$ 6,158,761$ 1,981,482$ 5,512,435$ 27,018,392$    
% 0.99% 0.17% 0.24% 8.79% 12.79% 3.29% 23.20% 22.79% 7.33% 20.40% 100.00%

FOURTH QUARTER

Total Fourth Quarter

THIRD QUARTER

Total Third Quarter

2



Airport
0.99%

Downtown
Parking
0.17%

Facilities
0.24%

Other/
Successor Agency

8.79%

Streets
12.79%

Streets Grants

Waterfront
7.33%

Other Grants
20.40%

Completed Capital Projects Funding For Fiscal Year 
2015

3.29%

Water
23.20%Wastewater

22.79%

Grand Total $27,018,392

Attachment 3



Attachment 4 
 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS WITH DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

PROJECT CATEGORY 
DESIGN IN PROGRESS 

No. of 
Projects Total Value of Projects

Airport 3 $2,072,350 
Parks and Recreation 1 $9,100,000 
Creeks 1 $2,000,000 
Public Works: Streets/Bridges 8 $31,913,655 
Public Works:Streets/Transportation 13 $10,122,244 
Public Works: Water/Wastewater 15 $56,958,156 

TOTAL 41 $112,166,405 

PROJECT CATEGORY 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

No. of 
Projects 

Construction 
Contract Costs 

Creeks 1 $1,053,780 

Facilities 1 $1,200,231 

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Santa Barbara 1 $463,558 

Public Works: Streets/Bridges 3 $25,641,359 

Public Works: Streets/Transportation 3 $2,744,290 

Public Works: Water/Wastewater 9 $14,397,428 

TOTAL 18 $45,500,646 



Agenda Item No.  16 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: August 4, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of An Amended Coastal 

Development Permit For A New Pool At 3425 Sea Ledge Lane 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council deny the appeal of Chris Krach-Bastian, and uphold the decision of the 
Planning Commission to approve an Amendment to a Coastal Development Permit for a 
new pool, spa, pool equipment and safety fencing at 3425 Sea Ledge Lane, making the 
findings and adopting the conditions specified in Planning Commission Resolution No. 
011-15. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
On June 11, 2015, the Planning Commission approved an Amendment to a previously 
approved Coastal Development Permit to allow the construction of a new pool, spa, pool 
equipment and safety fencing at 3425 Sea Ledge Lane.  Ms. Chris Krach-Bastian, 
adjacent neighbor of the project site, filed an appeal asserting that the slope below the 
subject property is unstable and a new pool is not appropriate for the project site.  Staff 
believes that the Planning Commission adequately reviewed the geologic analysis for the 
proposed site and thoroughly reviewed the project for consistency with the Local Coastal 
Plan.  Therefore, Staff’s recommendation is to deny the appeal and uphold the Planning 
Commission’s approval. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Description 
 
The proposed project consists of the construction a new 450 square-foot pool, a 49 
square-foot spa, associated pool equipment, deck, and safety fencing on a 17,490 square-
foot lot in the Hillside Design District and the Appealable Jurisdiction of the Coastal Zone.  
The proposed scope of work resulted in the need for an Amendment to a Coastal 
Development Permit approved by the Planning Commission on May 2, 2013, and revised 
on August 8, 2014, which allowed for a remodel and two-story addition to an existing 
single-story residence on the lot. 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of An Amended Coastal Development Permit 
For A New Pool At 3425 Sea Ledge Lane  
August 4, 2015 
Page 2 

 

Background 
 
May 2, 2013 - The Planning Commission approved a Coastal Development Permit for a 
remodel and addition to an existing one-story, single-family residence. The project 
consisted of one and two-story additions, a 449 square-foot basement, a new two-car 
garage and one-car carport, and a 1,200 square-foot "as-built" deck with above-ground 
spa.   
 
July 1, 2013 - The Single Family Design Board (SFDB) granted Project Design Approval 
for the remodel and addition, making the Neighborhood Preservation Ordinance findings of 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code §22.69.050.  The project returned to the Consent Calendar 
on July 29, 2013, and received Final Approval.   

 
May 2014 - The SFDB reviewed and approved a revised project with an overall change in 
the style of architecture and several changes to the floor plan. These changes consisted of 
eliminating the basement, revisions to the floor plan and roof plan, relocating the garage to 
the west side of the house, eliminating the carport, and minor increases to the building 
footprint.  Although there was a minor increase in first floor footprint, the revisions resulted 
in an overall reduction of net floor area. Staff found these revisions to be in substantial 
conformance with the original project approval.  
 
August 13, 2014 - A building permit was issued for the remodel and second-story 
residential addition, resulting in an approximately 3,608 square-foot, two-story house with 
an attached 488 square-foot garage. 
 
October 30, 2014 - An application for an Amendment to the Coastal Development Permit 
was submitted for the new pool, spa, pool equipment and required safety fencing.   
 
November 17, 2014 - The proposed pool and spa were reviewed by the SFDB on the 
Consent Calendar and forwarded to the Planning Commission. 
 
January 2015 - The application for an Amendment to the original CDP was received and 
through the Development Application Review Process, the application was deemed 
complete on May 12, 2015. 
 
June 11, 2015 - The Planning Commission approved the Amendment to the Coastal 
Development Permit (Attachments 2 and 3 – PC Resolution and Minutes).   
 
June 22, 2015 - An appeal of the Planning Commission’s approval was filed by the 
adjacent neighbor, Chris Krach-Bastian, who resides at 3407 Sea Ledge Lane. 
 
Appeal Issues 
 
The appellant is concerned with the stability of the bluff on which the property is located 
and cited previous landslides that have occurred in the area (Attachment 1 – Appellant’s 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of An Amended Coastal Development Permit 
For A New Pool At 3425 Sea Ledge Lane  
August 4, 2015 
Page 3 

 

Letter). The primary coastal issue that the Planning Commission considered in reviewing 
the Coastal Development Permit (CDP) Amendment was hazards related to seacliff 
retreat.   
 
Sea Cliff and Bluff Stability 
The bluff top project site is a relatively level area situated between an uplifted terrace 
towards Cliff Drive to the north and a neighboring residence (3407 Sea Ledge Lane – the 
appellant’s property) to the south.  The house pad is supported by a concrete beam and 
caisson supported retaining wall near the top of the slope just south of the existing 
residence.  The topography continues to slope down from the retaining wall to meet the 
house pad of the adjacent property to the south that is located on the coastal bluff. 
 
The City’s Local Coastal Plan states that new development on the top of a sea bluff shall 
be placed at such distance away from the edge of bluff that normal rates of erosion will not 
seriously affect structures during their expected lifetime, which is 75 years.  A licensed 
geologist determines how much erosion is estimated to occur on the project site within the 
next 75 years using average annual rates of erosion and material loss.  This policy is then 
implemented by locating new development outside of the delineated 75-year geological 
setback.   
 
The Geologic Investigation prepared for the remodel and addition to the residence 
determined that the top of bluff for the subject parcel is in line with the aforementioned 
retaining wall located approximately 17 feet south of the house. The top of the natural 
coastal bluff is below the neighboring property to the south at 3407 Sea Ledge and is 
approximately 100 feet south of the subject retaining wall.  There is also a rock revetment 
located on the beach, along the toe of the slope, below the neighboring house, which 
provides additional protection from wave-induced erosion. 
 
Because there is a retaining wall on the project site and an existing residence below the 
subject site with the added benefit of a rock revetment, the rate of retreat due to wave 
attack and erosion for this particular property was determined to be zero inches per year.  
Based on observations of the site immediately to the west (which does not have a 
retaining wall) when the original CDP application was reviewed, the project geologist 
recommended a 15-foot setback from the existing retaining wall for habitable structures in 
order to provide an additional measure of safety.  
 
For the subject CDP Amendment application, staff requested additional geologic analysis 
to address the addition of the pool and spa and their effect on the existing retaining wall.  A 
new Geologic Investigation prepared by Adam Simmons, dated April 14, 2015, stated that 
the proposed pool will not impact the stability of the slope since the pool is to be placed 
behind the existing caisson-supported retaining wall (Attachment 4 – PC Staff Report). 
 
The geologist recommended that the new pool be constructed with its own self-supporting 
caisson foundation and not be tied to the existing retaining wall or residence. The 
proposed structural design for the pool includes five drilled piles, including four for the pool 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of An Amended Coastal Development Permit 
For A New Pool At 3425 Sea Ledge Lane  
August 4, 2015 
Page 4 

 

and one for the spa, and would extend below the depth of the existing caisson-supported 
retaining wall.   
 
The geologic report also states that the weight of the water in the pool is roughly half the 
weight of the soil to be removed to install the pool and, therefore, construction of the 
proposed pool will not impact the existing retaining wall or stability of the slope and will not 
add excessive weight to the top of the bluff.   
 
The project geologist also recommended installing a French drain system below the pool 
with an exit at a visible downslope location so that any potential pool seepage could be 
spotted and mitigated, and minimize saturation of the soil on the slope. This was 
incorporated as a condition of project approval.    
 
Previous Landslides 
3425 Sea Ledge Lane (Project Site) 

In 1998, a slope failure occurred on the project site. A site visit by the Building Inspector at 
that time revealed that soil and mud had given way and settled further down the slope on 
the same property. The remedy to this situation involved removal of three existing pipe and 
plank planter walls along the sloped portion of the property and construction of two 
retaining walls to protect the existing home on-site. The primary retaining wall was 
proposed to be 105 feet long with 20 to 40 foot deep caissons and tie backs.  A secondary 
85-foot long redwood retaining wall was to be placed downslope about 8 feet away from 
the longer retaining wall.   
 
During that review process, geologic and engineering information was provided to staff 
and the Planning Commission to assess the proposed walls. Both an engineering 
geologist and soils engineer assessed the site and concurred that improper drainage 
allowed winter rainfall to saturate the fill soils comprising 4-5 feet of the surface material 
and was the most likely trigger for the slope failure.  The two proposed retaining walls were 
not intended to stabilize the sea cliff from wave attack, but were engineered to stabilize the 
yard on the subject property and protect the existing residence from possible future 
damage resulting from erosion of the descending slope. 
 
3443 & 3443 Sea Ledge Lane 

In 2013, a slope failure occurred between the upper and lower portions of Sea Ledge Lane 
near the entrance from Cliff Drive.  This slope failure was reportedly caused by repairs 
made to a utility pole adjacent to Sea Ledge Lane.  The repairs consisted of  installing a 
retaining wall system, including micro-piles and tiebacks, 67 feet long with a maximum 
height of 6 feet; drainage improvements that tie into the existing drainage system; and new 
landscaping with temporary irrigation for erosion control and visual screening of the new 
retaining wall. An emergency permit was issued to install the retaining wall due to 
concerns about the stability of the road, which serves as the only access for several 
homes, as well as being the only means of emergency access and egress.  In April 2015, 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Approval Of An Amended Coastal Development Permit 
For A New Pool At 3425 Sea Ledge Lane  
August 4, 2015 
Page 5 

 

the Staff Hearing Officer approved a Coastal Development Permit for the retaining wall 
and associated improvements, and all construction has been completed.   
 
Drought 
 
The City is currently in a Stage Three Drought condition with mandatory water use 
regulations. The appellant states that because the city is currently experiencing a drought 
it does not make sense to construct a new pool on the bluff top. In May 2015, the City 
Council considered the option of suspending the issuance of building permits for new 
pools during the drought. Council decided not to restrict the construction of new pools 
because the amount of water that would be saved would not be considerable.  
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
The proposed project has undergone a thorough review by the Planning Commission.  
The main issue is whether the geology of the project site and its improvements can 
appropriately accommodate a new pool.  Staff believes that the Planning Commission fully 
considered this issue and reviewed the technical reports provided by the licensed 
geologist, making the findings for project approval. The Planning Commission considered 
the policies of the California Coastal Act and the Local Coastal Plan, and found that the 
project will not result in any adverse affects related to coastal resources, as the proposed 
pool is located out of the recommended 75-year seacliff retreat line, is appropriate for the 
site, and compatible with the surrounding neighborhood.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Appellant Letter dated June 22, 2015 
2. Planning Commission Resolution #011-15 
3. Planning Commission Minutes dated June 11, 2015 
4. Planning Commission Staff Report dated June 4, 2015 

 
PREPARED BY: Kelly Brodison, Assistant Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



  
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
 

June 11, 2015 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
Chair Thompson called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. 

I. ROLL CALL 
Chair Addison Thompson, Vice-Chair John P. Campanella, Commissioners Jay D. Higgins, 
Mike Jordan, Sheila Lodge, June Pujo, and Deborah L. Schwartz. 

Commissioner Deborah Schwartz arrived at 1:02 P.M. 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Beatriz Gularte, Senior Planner 
N. Scott Vincent, Assistant City Attorney 
Andrew Stuffler, Chief Building Official 
Pat McElroy, Fire Department Chief 
Lee Waldron, Fire Battalion Chief 
Chris Mailes, Fire Department Training Captain 
Tony Pighetti, Fire Captain 
Steven Greer, Project Planner/Environmental Analyst 
Bradley Klinzing, Public Works Project Planner 
Kelly Brodison, Assistant Planner  
Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary 

II. PRELIMINARY MATTERS: 

A. Requests for continuances, withdrawals, postponements, or addition of ex-agenda 
items. 

None. 

B. Announcements and appeals. 

None. 

C. Comments from members of the public pertaining to items not on this agenda. 

Chair Thompson opened the public hearing at 1:00 P.M. and, with no one wishing to 
speak, closed the hearing. 

 3

gpeirce
Cross-Out

gpeirce
Rectangle

gpeirce
Cross-Out

gpeirce
Rectangle

gpeirce
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 3

gpeirce
Typewritten Text



III. NEW ITEMS:   

ACTUAL TIME: 1:00 P.M. 
 
A. APPLICATION OF BRAD KLINZING, APLICANT FOR CITY OF SANTA 

BARBARA, 4 S. CALLE CESAR CHAVEZ, APN 017-113-023, OM-1 / SD-3 
(OCEAN-ORIENTED LIGHT MANUFACTURING / COASTAL 
OVERLAY) ZONES, GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION: INSTITUTIONAL, 
LOCAL COASTAL PLAN DESIGNATION: MAJOR PUBLIC AND 
INSTITUTIONAL  (MST2014-00554) 
The project consists of the installation of two pre-fabricated steel structures totaling 
1,170 square feet at the existing City Fire Training Facility, located on a two-acre 
parcel within the City’s El Estero Wastewater Treatment Facility property.  One 
structure would be a one-story, 240 square-foot structure with a maximum height of 
8-½ feet, and the second structure would be a two-story, 930 square-foot structure 
with a maximum height of 17 feet.  The structures would be utilized for fire 
observation and fire training purposes.  The project also proposes on-site drainage 
improvements, consistent with the City’s Tier 3 Storm Water Management Plan 
requirements.  The project also includes the legalization of several “as-built” 
structures that were previously developed on site and total approximately 3,476 
square feet.   

The discretionary applications required for this project are:   

1. A Development Plan to allow the construction of 4,646 square feet of 
nonresidential development (SBMC Chapter 28.85); 

2. A Conditional Use Permit to allow the construction of 4,646 square feet of 
nonresidential development for use as a Fire Training Facility in the OM-
1/SD-3 zone (SBMC §28.94.030(x)); and 

3. A Coastal Development Permit (CDP2015-00006) to allow the proposed 
development in the Appealable Jurisdiction of the City’s Coastal Zone 
(SBMC §28.44.060). 

The project requires an environmental finding pursuant to California Environmental 
Quality Act Guidelines Section 15183, Projects Consistent with a Community Plan 
or Zoning.  

Contact: Steven Greer, Project Planner 
Email: SGreer@SantaBarbaraCA.gov Phone: (805) 564-5470, ext. 4558 

 
Steven Greer, Project Planner, gave the Staff presentation, joined by Brad Klining, 
Public Works Project Engineer; Pat McElroy, Santa Barbara Fire Department Chief; 
Chris Mailes, Fire Training Captain; Tony Pighetti, Fire Captain; and Lee Waldron, 
Fire Battalion Chief. 
 

 3

mailto:SGreer@SantaBarbaraCA.gov


Chair Thompson opened the public hearing at 1:30 P.M., and with no one wishing to 
speak, the public hearing was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Jordon/Lodge Assigned Resolution No.  010-15 
Approved the project, making the findings for the Development Plan, Conditional 
Use Permit, and Coastal Development Permit as outlined in the Staff Report, dated 
June 4, 2015, subject to the Conditions of Approval in Exhibit A of the Staff Report 
with the following revisions to the Conditions of Approval: 
1. Add a condition for Neighborhood Notification that the Fire Department 

will continue the current practice of notifying surrounding properties of 
when a training operation is occurring. 

2. Add a condition that states that this is a Fire Training Facility available to 
the City Fire Department and other agencies at the Fire Chief’s discretion.  

 
This motion carried by the following vote:   
 
Ayes:  7    Noes:  0    Abstain:  0    Absent:  0 
 
Chair Thompson announced the ten calendar day appeal period.   

ACTUAL TIME: 1:56 P.M. 
 
B. APPLICATION OF ALICIA HARRISON, AGENT FOR JACQUES HABRA, 

3425 SEA LEDGE LANE, APN 047-083-012, A-1/SD-3  ZONES, LOCAL 
COASTAL PLAN DESIGNATION: RESIDENTIAL 1 DU/ACRE  (MST2014-
00537) 
The project consists of a proposal to construct a new 400 square-foot pool and spa 
with associated pool equipment and safety fencing on a 17,490 square-foot lot in the 
Hillside Design District.  This proposal is an amendment to the recent Coastal 
Development Permit dated May 2, 2013, and revised on August 8,2014, under 
MST2012-00135, which approved 2,508 square feet of one- and two-story additions, 
the demolition of the existing garage, and the conversion of 488 of existing habitable 
floor area into a new two-car garage.   

The discretionary application required for this project is an Amendment to a 
Coastal Development Permit (CDP2012-00004) to allow the proposed 
development in the Appealable Jurisdiction of the City’s Coastal Zone 
(SBMC §28.44). 

The Environmental Analyst has determined that the project is exempt from further 
environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
Guidelines Section 15303, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures, 
which allows for the construction of accessory structures including swimming pools. 

Contact: Kelly Brodison, Assistant Planner 
Email: KBrodison@SantaBarbaraCA.gov Phone: (805) 564-5470, ext. 4531 

 3

mailto:KBrodison@SantaBarbaraCA.gov


Kelly Brodison, Assistant Planner, gave the Staff presentation.  Andrew Stuffler, 
Chief Building Official was available to answer any of the Commission’s questions. 
 
Alicia Harrison, Agent, gave the Applicant presentation.  The project team of Adam 
Simmons, Engineering Geologist; Tom Henson, Project Architect, Peter Becker 
Architect; Allen Cooper, Pool Contractor, Pintado Pools, were also available to 
answer any of the Commission’s questions. 
 
Commissioner Schwartz left the dais at 2:28 P.M. and returned at 2:31 P.M. 
 
Chair Thompson opened the public hearing at 3:24 P.M. 
 
Chris Krach-Bastian, adjacent neighbor below, submitted written comment 
expressing concern with the area’s prior slides and the potential for future slides that 
could impact her home.  She was also concerned with approving pool construction 
during the drought, and her recourse if her property were to be impacted by a future 
slide. 
 
With no one else wishing to speak, the public hearing was closed at 3:28 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Lodge  had to leave the remainder of the hearing at 3:33 P.M. and 
stated she could support the spa, but not the pool. 
 
Commissioner Higgins left the dais at 3:43 P.M. and returned at 3:46 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Schwartz left the dais at 3:56 P.M. and returned at 3: 58 P.M. 
 
MOTION:  Jordon/Pujo Assigned Resolution No.  011-15 
Approved the project, making the findings for the Amendment to the Coastal 
Development Permit, as outlined in the Staff Report dated June 4, 2015, subject to 
the Conditions of Approval in Exhibit A of the Staff Report with the following 
revisions to the Conditions of Approval:  
a. Accept date revision to Condition E. 2. Geologic Investigation for pool 

and spa.  
b. Add to Section B, the Recorded Conditions Agreement, a condition on 

pool leakage that states upon the observation of a leak from the French 
drain, the Property Owner shall have an investigation conducted by an 
appropriate professional who will prepare a report to the Chief Building 
Official detailing the results of the investigation with a recommended 
response.  If the investigation determines that a condition threatens the 
stability of the pool foundation or the retaining wall foundation, the pool 
shall be drained by truck until repairs have been affected and the stability 
of the foundation systems is confirmed by the Chief Building Official.  

c. Add Condition E. 7. Construction Monitoring, that states construction 
monitoring of the integrity of the existing retaining wall will be looked at 

 3



during construction, post filling the pool, and six months after pool 
completion by a licensed geologist with the results submitted to the City’s 
Community Development Director.  

d. Add a Condition that the construction of the project is to be conducted and 
completed during the dry season, generally considered to be April through 
October.  

This motion carried by the following vote:   
 
Ayes:  5    Noes:  1 (Schwartz)    Abstain:  0    Absent:  1 (Lodge) 
 
Commissioner Schwartz could not support the motion. 
 
Chair Thompson announced the ten calendar day appeal period.   

IV. ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA 

ACTUAL TIME: 4:18 P.M. 

D. Committee and Liaison Reports 

1. Staff Hearing Officer Liaison Report 

a. Commissioner Jordan reported on the Staff Hearing Officer meeting 
of June 10, 2015. 

2. Other Committee and Liaison Reports 

a. Commissioner Schwartz reported on the Water Commission Hearing 
of June 8, 2015. 

b. Commissioner Campanella reported on the Downtown Parking 
Committee meeting of June 11, 2015. 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chair Thompson adjourned the meeting at 4:28 P.M. 
 

Submitted by, 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Julie Rodriguez, Planning Commission Secretary 

 3



ATTACHMENT 4



 

 
 

3425 Sea Ledge Lane Vicinity Map 
 
 
 

 
IV. SITE INFORMATION AND PROJECT STATISTICS 

A. SITE INFORMATION 

Applicant:  Alicia Harrison 
Property Owner: Jacques Habra 
Site Information 
Parcel Number: 047-082-012 Lot Area: 17,490 sq. ft. 
General Plan: Hillside - Low Density 
Residential (Max 1 du/acre) 

Zoning: A-1/SD-3, Single-Family 
Residence and Coastal Overlay Zone 

LCP Land Use: Residential (1 du /acre) Topography :  ~19% 
Adjacent Land Uses 

North – Sea Ledge Lane East – Single-Family Residential 
South – Pacific Ocean West – Single-Family Residential 

 
 

Project Site 

ATTACHMENT 4



V. BACKGROUND 
On May 2, 2013, the Planning Commission approved a Coastal Development for the remodel 
and second-story addition to an existing one-story, 1,589 square foot, single-family residence 
with detached garage.  The project consisted of 1,566 square feet of one and two-story 
additions, a 449 square-foot basement; demolition of the existing garage to be replaced with a 
451 square foot, two-car garage, a 220 square foot, one-car carport, and a 1,211 square-foot 
"as-built" deck with above-ground spa.   
 
In August 2014, a Level 2 Substantial Conformance Determination was approved, which 
included eliminating the basement, revising the floor plan and roof plan, relocating the 
driveway to the west side of the house, and minor increases to the building footprint.  The 
revised project resulted in an approximately 3,608 square-foot, two-story residence with an 
attached 488 square-foot two-car garage.   Although there was a minor increase in first floor 
footprint, the Substantial Conformance Determination resulted in an overall reduction of net 
floor area.   
 
Both of the above plans received approval from the Single Family Design Board. 
 

VI. POLICY AND ZONING CONSISTENCY ANALYSIS 
The proposed pool, spa, deck and fence, would meet the requirements of the A-1/SD-3 zones 
related to building height, solar access, open yard requirements and parking, and remain legally 
nonconforming to the interior setback requirement along the west property line. 

A. COMPLIANCE WITH THE LOCAL COASTAL PLAN  
An LCP amendment has not been approved for the recently updated General Plan.  
Therefore, the previous General Plan Land Use Designation acts as the Local Coastal Plan 
Land Use Designation.  This project site has a Land Use Designation of Residential (1 du 
/acre).  The site is located in the Campanil neighborhood that is bordered on the north by 
Arroyo Burro Creek; on the south by the Pacific Ocean; on the east by the City limits line; 
and on the west by Hope Ranch.  This neighborhood is characterized as large parcels which 
are either vacant or contain single-family dwellings.   

Because the site is located within fifty feet of the edge of a coastal bluff in the Appealable 
Jurisdiction of the Coastal Zone, a Coastal Development Permit (CDP) was required for the 
recent remodel and addition to the existing single family residence on the lot.  The applicant 
is now requesting an Amendment to that Coastal Development Permit to construct the pool.  
In order to approve the CDP Amendment, the new pool must be found consistent with both 
the City’s Local Coastal Plan and the California Coastal Act.  The proposed project would 
be consistent with the pattern single-family residential development in the area. 

The project is located in Component One of the City’s Local Coastal Plan (LCP) which 
stretches from the city’s westerly boundary, adjacent to Hope Ranch, east to Arroyo Burro 
Creek, and extending inland 1,000 yards.   

ATTACHMENT 4



The major coastal issues in this area that are applicable to this project include hazards of 
seacliff retreat, drainage, maintaining and providing public access both vertically and 
laterally along the bluffs, maintenance of existing public views of the coast and open space, 
protection of archaeological resources and neighborhood compatibility.  The project’s 
consistency with these LCP Policies is described below.   The site does not serve as a public 
facility, recreation area, or public coastal access point.  The pool and fence will not inhibit 
public views because the project site is not visible from any public viewing areas and 
cannot be seen from Cliff Drive, which is the nearest public street.  Also, there are no issues 
with unstable soils, high groundwater, seismic safety, flooding or fire.   

Although the General Plan is not the standard of review in this case, it provides additional 
guidance.  The City’s General Plan - Safety Element includes policies relative to coastal 
bluff development including the requirement for a site specific investigation, appropriate 
structural setbacks to address the potential for long term erosion and bluff drainage.  These 
policies are attached for reference as Exhbit E. 

 For these reasons, the project can be found consistent with the applicable policies of the 
California Coastal Act, the Local Coastal Plan, and all implementing guidelines.   

1. HAZARDS 
The General and Local Coastal Plans strive to eliminate or reduce the hazards created 
by bluff loading and drainage related issues, which contribute to bluff erosion and 
undercutting of the slope. 

Seacliff Retreat 
The project site is a relatively level area situated between an uplifted terrace towards 
Cliff Drive to the north and a neighboring residence (3407 Sea Ledge Lane) to the 
south.  The house pad is supported by a concrete beam and retaining wall near the top of 
the slope just south of the existing residence.  The topography continues to slope down 
from the retaining wall with dense vegetative cover to meet the house pad of the 
adjacent property to the south that is located on the coastal bluff. 
   
The Local Coastal Plan states that new development on the top of a sea bluff shall be 
placed at such distance away from the edge of bluff that normal rates of erosion will not 
seriously affect the structure during its expected lifetime.  This policy is implemented 
by locating new development outside the 75-year geological setback to protect bluffs 
from erosion and maintain the natural topography of the bluffs.  The 75-year geological 
setback is determined by an engineering geologist based on an average annual rate of 
erosion and material loss.   
 
As stated above, Coastal Development Permit was approved for a remodel and two-
story addition on May 2, 2013.  The Geologic Investigation prepared for that 
development determined that the top of bluff as it pertains to this site is in line with the 
aforementioned retaining wall located approximately 17’ south of the proposed house.  
The top of the natural coastal bluff is actually approximately 100 feet south (downslope 
of the existing residence) of the site retaining wall below where the southerly 
neighbor’s residence and driveway are located.  There is also a rock revetment located 

ATTACHMENT 4



along the toe of the slope, below that neighboring house which provides additional 
protection from wave-induced erosion. 
 
Because there is a retaining wall on-site, and an existing residence below the subject 
site with the added benefit of a rock revetment, the rate of retreat due to wave attack and 
erosion for this particular property is zero inches per year.  Based on observations of the 
site immediately to the west (which does not have a retaining wall), when the original 
CDP application was reviewed the geologist recommended a 15 foot setback from the 
existing retaining wall for habitable structures in order to provide an additional measure 
of safety.  
 
The applicant is now requesting a CDP Amendment for a new pool, spa, associated pool 
equipment, deck and fencing.  Staff requested additional analysis to address the addition 
of the pool and spa and their effect on the existing retaining wall.  A Geologic 
Investigation prepared by Adam Simmons, dated April 14, 2015, stated that the 
proposed pool will not impact the stability of the slope since the pool is to be placed 
behind an existing caisson supported retaining wall.    
 
The geologist recommends that the new pool be constructed with its own self 
supporting caisson foundation design and not tied to the existing retaining wall or 
proposed addition.  The proposed structural design for the pool includes five drilled 
piles, including four for the pool and one for the spa.  The caissons should extend below 
the depth of the existing caisson supported retaining wall.  The use of tiebacks along the 
northern perimeter of the foundation should be considered.  The caissons for the 
southern perimeter of the pool should be spaced appropriately to create independent 
support for each pile. This spacing should reduce any potential for foundation 
interference between the two structures and provide additional lateral strength of the 
deeper underlying earth material supported behind the caissons yet below the grade 
beams.   
 
The proposed pool deck may extend to the top of the existing retaining wall using a 
cantilevered support, without connecting the structures.  The report states that the 
weight of the water in the pool is roughly half the weight of the soil to be removed to 
install the pool and, therefore, construction of the proposed pool will not impact the 
existing retaining wall or stability of the slope since the weight of material to be 
retained behind the existing caisson supported retaining wall is being reduced and will 
not add excessive weight to the top of the bluff which is consistent with Policy S27 of 
the Safety Element of the General Plan.   
 
The geologist also recommends installing a French drain system below the proposed 
pool.  The French drain should exit at a visible downslope location so that any potential 
future pool seepage could be spotted and mitigated so as to minimize the saturation of 
the soil on the slope.    
 
 

ATTACHMENT 4



 
 
Drainage 

  
LCP Policy 8.1 as well as Policy S26 of the Safety Element, require all new bluff top 
development to have drainage systems that carry runoff away from the bluff to the 
nearest public street.  Because of the site topography described above, runoff cannot be 
directed to the nearest public street, which is Cliff Drive to the north.  In these types of 
situations, private bluff drainage systems are permitted if the following is accomplished:   

 
1) The system is sized to accommodate run-off from all similarly drained parcels 

bordering the subject parcel’s property lines; 
2) The owner of the subject property allows for the permanent drainage of those 

parcels though his/her property; and 
3) The drainage system is designed to be minimally visible on the bluff face.   

 
There were no changes to property drainage as approved as part of the CDP for the 
single family residence. All storm water runoff from the site eventually reaches two (2) 
existing 6 inch outlet pipe drains in the parking/turnaround area to the southeast of the 
property. All drainage is captured and routed to the inlets so that no drainage will be 
allowed to run over the slope.  
 
As part of the original Coastal Development Permit, a Drainage Analysis/Hydrology 
Report was prepared by LaChaine & Associates, Inc., dated November 12, 2012, with  
an addendum dated March 11, 2013, (available under separate cover) that described the 
existing drainage system on site. The existing system collects water from the existing 
development and  two off-site runoff sources (the asphalt driveway and the slope north 
of the property) and is conveyed along the northern shoulder to the parking/turnaround 
area southeast of the site where two (2) six inch corrugated plastic pipes carry the water 
down to the beach.  
 
Per the Drainage Report prepared by La Chaine and Associates and dated November 12, 
2012, the two pipes have the capacity to convey the residence level runoff from the site 
drainage and the greater watershed that feeds them. The report also concludes that no 
increase in runoff would result from the residence nor would the residence cause runoff 
volumes to increase beyond the capacity of the two outlets.  
 
The originally approved project design included two site drains/drop inlets along with a 
bio retention planter box located in the eastern corner of the property to accommodate 
the increase in building footprint.  These improvements along with the additional 
landscape planters around the house will result in a 260 square-foot net loss of 
impermeable surface on the property.   The above-mentioned Hydrology Report is 
applicable to the proposed pool, spa, and associated pool equipment because the pool is 
a small portion of area and it will benefit the permeability of the site by capturing 
rainfall and slightly reducing site runoff.   

ATTACHMENT 4



For the proposed project, La Chaine determined that the pool does not change their 
conclusion and actually benefits the property by adding a minor component of capturing 
rainfall and slightly lessoning site runoff.  
  
The new French drain is located beneath the pool. The sole purpose of this French drain 
is for detection of a pool leak if the pool were to fail. The outfall of this French drain 
needs to be visible so that the leak can be detected. The outfall is located at a point 
distant from the pool so that it can be gravity fed, and this outfall is located on the 
property. Any potential overflow at this point would flow to the asphalt road and storm 
drain to the beach consistent with existing conditions.  Overflow from this point is only 
anticipated in the case of a pool leak which would be addressed and repaired as soon as 
the overflow was apparent. 
 
Water Quality 
As part of the original Coastal Development Permit, the applicant is also constructing a 
60 square-foot bio retention planter box to assist in removing sediment from storm 
water runoff before flowing to the beach.  Six small landscaped areas around the home 
are being provided to create natural treatment/filtration of site runoff.  These 
improvements remain sufficient for the new pool. 
 

VII. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
The Environmental Analyst has determined that the project is exempt from further 
environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 
15303, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures, which allows for the construction 
of accessory structures including swimming pools. 

VIII. DESIGN REVIEW 
The proposed pool was reviewed by the Single Family Design Board on the Consent Calendar 
on November 17, 2015.  The project was found to be aesthetically appropriate and forwarded it 
on to the Planning Commission.  The applicant was asked to provide additional information 
when the project returns for a Final Approval including details on the landscaping treatment 
around the pool equipment area, details on the fencing, and any lighting associated with the 
pool. 

IX. FINDINGS 
The Planning Commission finds the following:   

A. COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT (SBMC §28.44.150) 
The project is consistent with the policies of the California Coastal Act, with all applicable 
policies of the City’s Local Coastal Plan, all applicable implementing guidelines and all 
applicable provisions of the Municipal Code.  Therefore, Staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission approve the Coastal Development Permit, subject to the Conditions of Approval 
in Exhibit A and make the following findings for the project. 

ATTACHMENT 4



1. The project is consistent with the policies of the California Coastal Act because it does 
not result in any adverse affects related to coastal resources, including views and public 
access, and the proposed addition is located outside of the 75-year seacliff retreat line as 
described in Section VI.A. of the Staff Report.   

2. The project is consistent with all applicable policies of the City's Local Coastal Plan, all 
applicable implementing guidelines, and all applicable provisions of the Code because 
the pool, spa deck and safety fencing is compatible with the surrounding bluff top 
neighborhood, will not impact views from public view corridors, will not impact public 
access, is not an archaeologically sensitive site, and addresses the potential for drainage 
hazards on the bluff as described in Section VI.A. of the Staff Report. 

Exhibits: 

A. Amended Conditions of Approval 
B. Site Plan 
C. Applicant's letter, dated April 15, 2015 
D. Single Family Design Board Minutes 
E. Applicable Local Coastal Plan and General Plan Policies 
F. Geologic Investigation prepared by Adam Simmons dated April 14, 2015 
G. PC Resolution 008-13 

ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.PDF
	13.DOC
	14.PDF
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.PDF
	21.PDF
	22.DOC
	23.PDF
	24.PDF
	25.PDF
	26.PDF
	27.DOC
	28.PDF
	29.PDF
	30.PDF
	31.PDF
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	AUGUST 4, 2015
	AGENDA



